STATE OF MAINE
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, CONSERVATION & FORESTRY 3
BOARD OF PESTICIDES CONTROL
28 STATE HOUSE STATION
AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333

AMANDA E. BEAL
JANET T. MILLS COMMISSIONER
GOVERNOR

To: Board of Pesticides Control Members

From: Mary Tomlinson, Pesticides Registrar/Water Quality Specialist

RE: Extension of EPA SLN [FIFRA, Section 24(c)] request to extend use of Arsenal Herbicide
Applicators Concentrate, EPA Reg. No. 241-299, to allow increased surfactant rate when used
in combination with glyphosate for Jack pine, red spruce and white spruce release

Date: November 9, 2021

s sk s sk s sk s sk sk sk st sk st sk sk sfe ke sfe sk sk sk ke sfe sk s sk s sk sk sk sk sk st sk st sk sk sfe ke sk sk sk sk ke sfe sk s sk s sk sk sk sk sk st sk st sk ke sfe sk sk skt sfe ke seoske sk sk skeosk sk skeosk

Ronald Lemin, Jr., Vegetation Management Sales Consultant, Nutrien Solutions, is requesting the
SLN (Special Local Needs) registration for Arsenal Herbicide Applicators Concentrate, be extended.
No changes have been made in the SLN label. The current EPA label specifies a maximum surfactant
concentration of 0.25% (v/v) for conifer release. The SLN allows the increased rate of surfactants for
tank mixes of Arsenal and glyphosate which maximizes the effectiveness of glyphosate.

The request is for two years, bridging the gap as BASF revises the label to include the use and begins
production and distribution.

The section 3 product label is registered for multiple sites, including use as an aquatic herbicide. Pam
Byer, Ph.D., BPC toxicologist has indicated the rate under this SLN should not cause any undue
harm to humans or the environment.

Please review the attached documents and let me know if you have any questions.
e Letter of request from Ronald Lemin, Jr.

e Letter of support from Effie Toren, Registration Specialist, BASF
e Current Arsenal SLN label

e Arsenal EPA label

e Arsenal Section 3 label

e Arsenal SDS

Ao

DEPARTMENT OF
MEGAN PATTERNSON, DIRECTOR Agriculture PHONE: (207) 287-2731
90 BLOSSOM LANE, DEERING BUILDING Conservation WWW.THINKFIRSTSPRAYLAST.ORG

& Forestry

"




Ronald C. Lemin, Jr.
Vegetation Management Sales Consultant
291 Lincoln Street

'\’ u t r i e n Bangor, Maine 04401

Soluti 207-944-6160 (m)
otutions Ronald.lemin@nutrien.com

November §, 2021

Maine Board of Pesticide Control
Attn: Mary Tomlinson

28 State House Station

Augusta, ME 04333-0028

Dear Ms. Tomlinson,

I am writing this letter of request to extend the registration of EPA SLN NO. ME-040001 for Arsenal
Applicators Concentrate (BASF, EPA Registration Number 241-299) in Maine. Since 2004, the forestry
community in Maine has been using this label for aerial softwood release on 10-12,000 acres annually.
The current Arsenal Applicators Concentrate label allows for a maximum nonionic surfactant
concentration of 0.25% v/v. When releasing conifers at 8 to 10 gallons per acre, this represents only 2.6
to 3.2 ounces of surfactant per acre. The Arsenal label also requires 6-12 ounces of Arsenal per acre for
spruce release, however in Maine we are using only 1-1.5 ounces of Arsenal Applicators Concentrate
tank mixed with 1.5-2.25 quarts of Rodeo or Roundup Custom. Consequently, the bulk of the active
ingredient (glyphosate) will not perform adequately at this lower surfactant level.

At the current labeled rate of surfactant (0.25% v/v) and using the tank mixes of 1.5 -2.25 quarts of
Rodeo or Roundup Custom and 1-1.5 ounces of Arsenal A.C., the result would be a significant loss of
efficacy. This would result in an increase in poor performance claims with re-treatment of acreage
annually. This increased surfactant rate has been used historically since 2004 with great success. I feel
it is essential to maintain this SLN NO. ME-040001 until it can be incorporated into the primary Arsenal
Applicators Concentrate label upon reregistration.

Thank you for your time and consideration. If you have any further questions, please feel free to contact
me at the address below.

Sincerely,

/72//; Yy

Ronald C. Lemin, Jr.

Vegetation Management Consultant, Nutrien Solutions
Licensed Professional Forester, ME, NH

SAF Certified Forester

Maine Licensed Applicator



BASF

We create chemistry Agricultural Solutions

November 8, 2021

Mary Tomlinson

Board of Pesticide Control

Maine Department of Agriculture
28 State House Station

Augusta, ME 04333-0028

Re: Arsenal® Applicators Concentrate Herbicide, EPA Reg. No. 241-299
Section 24(c) Registration

Dear Ms. Tomlinson,

Enclosed is revised Section 24(c) labeling (coded NVA 2021-04-104-0221) extending the
expiration date for labeling allowing the use of an increased concentration of nonionic surfactant
when Arsenal Applicators Concentrate is used in tank mix concentrations with glyphosate for
the purpose forestry conifer release.

There is a previous 24(c) label granted (SLN No. ME-040001) which is set to expire on
December 31, 2021. BASF plans to submit amended Section 3 labeling to the US EPA, but it
will take at least two years to achieve EPA acceptance and to incorporate those changes into
production on product containers. This 24(c) request is to maintain the ability of the increased
concentration of nonionic surfactant use with glyphosate tank mixes while BASF incorporates
the use into Section 3 labeling.

Thank you very much. Please contact me at 919-724-1350 or effie.toren@basf.com if you
require anything else.

Sincerely,
BASF Corporation

[d II.|' ‘-\‘

Effie Toren
State Registration Manager

Encl.

BASF Corporation

26 Davis Drive, PO Box 13528
Research Triangle Park

NC 27709-3528

Tel: (919) 547-2000 Helping Make Products Better™
www.basf.com/usa



For distribution and use only in
the state of Maine

FIFRA Sec. 24(¢)
Special Local Need Label

Group n Herbicide

Imazapyr

ARSENAL

herbicide

APPLICATORS CONCENTRATE

For Jack Pine, Black Spruce, Red Spruce, and White Spruce release

This special local need label expires on December 31, 2023 and must not be used or distributed after this date.

Active Ingredient:

Isopropylamine salt of imazapyr: (2-[4,5-dihydro-4-methyl-4-(1-methylethyl)-5-oxo-1H-imidazol-2-yl]-3-

pyridinecarboxylic acid)* .........cccooiiiiiii
Other Ingredients: ...............occoiiii e
Total: .o

............................................................................ 46.9%
............................................................................ 100.0%

*Equivalent to 43.3% 2-[4,5-dihydro-4-methyl-4-(1-methylethyl)-5-ox0-1H-imidazol-2-yl]-3-pyridinecarboxylic acid or

4 pounds acid per gallon

EPA Reg. No. 241-299
CAUTION

Directions For Use

Refer to the Arsenal® herbicide
Applicators Concentrate main label, EPA
Reg. No. 241-299, for complete Directions
For Use and all applicable restrictions and
precautions. When following the
instructions on this label, the user must
have this label and the entire Arsenal
herbicide Applicators Concentrate
container label in possession at the time
of pesticide application.

It is a violation of federal law to use this product in a
manner inconsistent with its labeling.

Application Methods

Conifer Release Treatment

Arsenal® herbicide Applicators Concentrate may
be used to release Jack Pine, Black Spruce, Red
Spruce and White Spruce from labeled brush, vine,

BASF Corporation
26 Davis Drive, Research Triangle Park, NC 27709

EPA SLN No. ME-040001

grass, and broadleaf weeds at rates less than
6 fl ozs/A when tank mixed with glyphosate.

A nonionic surfactant may be tank mixed at rates
greater than 0.25% v/v when using less than 6 fl ozs/A
of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate. The
use of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate
with more than 0.25% v/v nonionic surfactant can
result in conifer growth inhibition or mortality, and
should not be used if this type of conifer injury cannot
be tolerated.

The use of Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate rates below 6 fl ozs/A are intended for
hardwood brush growth suppression and hardwood
brush resprouting should be expected.

0= BASF

We create chemistry



Conditions of Sale and Warranty

The Directions For Use of this product reflect the
opinion of experts based on field use and tests. The
directions are believed to be reliable and must be
followed carefully. However, it is impossible to
eliminate all risks inherently associated with the use
of this product. Crop injury, ineffectiveness or other
unintended consequences may result because of
such factors as weather conditions, presence of
other materials, or use of the product in a manner
inconsistent with its labeling, all of which are
beyond the control of BASF CORPORATION
(“BASF”) or the Seller. To the extent consistent with
applicable law, all such risks shall be assumed by
the Buyer.

BASF warrants that this product conforms to the

chemical description on the label and is reasonably
fit for the purposes referred to in the Directions For
Use, subject to the inherent risks, referred to above.

TO THE EXTENT CONSISTENT WITH
APPLICABLE LAW, BASF MAKES NO OTHER
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY OF
FITNESS OR MERCHANTABILITY OR ANY
OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY.

TO THE EXTENT CONSISTENT WITH
APPLICABLE LAW, BUYER’S EXCLUSIVE
REMEDY AND BASF’S EXCLUSIVE LIABILITY,
WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT, NEGLIGENCE,
STRICT LIABILITY, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE
LIMITED TO REPAYMENT OF THE PURCHASE
PRICE OF THE PRODUCT.

TO THE EXTENT CONSISTENT WITH
APPLICABLE LAW, BASF AND THE SELLER
DISCLAIM ANY LIABILITY FOR
CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL OR
INDIRECT DAMAGES RESULTING FROM THE
USE OR HANDLING OF THIS PRODUCT.

BASF and the Seller offer this product, and the
Buyer and User accept it, subject to the foregoing
Conditions of Sale and Warranty which may be
varied only by agreement in writing signed by a duly
authorized representative of BASF. 1108

Arsenal is a registered trademark of BASF.

© 2021 BASF Corporation
All rights reserved.

000241-00299.20211108.NVA 2021-04-104-0221
Supersedes NVA 2016-04-104-0203

24(c) registrant:

BASF Corporation

26 Davis Drive

Research Triangle Park, NC 27709

O =BASF

We create chemistry



Arsenal
Herbicide
Applicators Concentrate

For the control of undesirable vegetation growing within specified aquatic sites, forestry sites,
pasture/rangeland, and nonagricultural lands; and for the establishment and maintenance of wildlife
openings, release of unimproved Bermudagrass and Bahiagrass, bareground weed control, and for use
under certain paved surfaces

Active Ingredient:
isopropylamine salt of imazapyr: (2-[4,5-dihydro-4-methyl-4-(1-methylethyl)-5-

ox0-1H-imidazol-2-yl]-3-pyridinecarboxylic acid)” ............ccocririiiiiiiiieiice .. 53.1%
Other Ingredients: ... s .. 46.9%
TORALE L. bbb L h bbb h bbb 100.0%

*Equivalent to 43.3% 2-[4,5-dihydro-4-methyl-4-(1-methylethyl)-5-oxo-1H-imidazol-2-yl]-3-pyridinecarboxylic acid or 4 pounds acid per gallon
EPA Reg. No. 241-299 EPA Est. No. 241-PR-002

KEEP OUT OF REACH OF CHILDREN

CAUTION/PRECAUCION

Si usted no entiende la etiqueta, busque a alguien para que se la explique a usted en detalle. (If you do not
understand the label, find someone to explain it to you in detail.)

FIRST AID: If swallowed: Call a poison control center or doctor immediately for treatment advice. Have person sip a glass of water if able to swallow.
DO NOT induce vomiting unless told to by a poison control center or doctor. DO NOT give anything to an unconscious person. If on skin or clothing:
Take off contaminated clothing. Rinse skin immediately with plenty of water for 15 to 20 minutes. Call a poison control center or doctor for treatment
advice. If inhaled: Move person to fresh air. If person is not breathing, call 911 or an ambulance; then give artificial respiration, preferably by mouth to
mouth, if possible. Call a poison control center or doctor for further treatment advice. If in eyes: Hold eyes open and rinse slowly and gently with water
for 15 to 20 minutes. Remove contact lenses, if present, after first 5 minutes; then continue rinsing eyes. Call a poison control center or doctor for treat-
ment advice. HOTLINE NUMBER: Have the product container or label with you when calling a poison control center or doctor or going for treatment.
In case of an emergency endangering life or property involving this product, call BASF Corporation for emergency medical treatment information, day
or night 1-800-832-HELP (4357).

See inside booklet for complete Precautionary Statements, Directions For Use, Conditions of Sale and Warranty, and state-specific crop and/or
use site restrictions.

81045263 NVA 2017-05-104-0198
Net Contents: 2.5 Gallons Product of U.SA.

BASF

We create chemistry




FIRST AID

If swallowed * Have person sip a glass of water if able to swallow.

¢ DO NOT give anything to an unconscious person.

* Call a poison control center or doctor immediately for treatment advice.

* DO NOT induce vomiting unless told to by a poison control center or doctor.

® Take off contaminated clothing.

::flgt':ﬁsnkm or * Rinse skin immediately with plenty of water for 15 to 20 minutes.
9 * Call a poison control center or doctor for treatment advice.
* Move person to fresh air.
If inhaled * |f person is not breathing, call 911 or an ambulance; then give artificial respiration, preferably by mouth to mouth, if possible.
 Call a poison control center or doctor for further treatment advice.
* Hold eyes open and rinse slowly and gently with water for 15 to 20 minutes.
If in eyes * Remove contact lenses, if present, after first 5 minutes; then continue rinsing eyes.

 Call a poison control center or doctor for treatment advice.

HOTLINE NUMBER

Have the product container or label with you when calling a poison control center or doctor or going for treatment. In case of an emergency endangering
life or property involving this product, call BASF Corporation for emergency medical treatment information, day or night 1-800-832-HELP (4357).

Precautionary Statements

Hazards to Humans and Domestic Animals
CAUTION. Harmful if swallowed. Avoid contact with skin, eyes, or clothing.
Avoid breathing spray mist.

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

Mixers, loaders, applicators, and other handlers must wear:

® L ong-sleeved shirt and long pants

® Shoes plus socks

e Chemical-resistant gloves made of any waterproof material such as bar-
rier laminate, butyl rubber > 14 mils, nitrile rubber > 14 mils, neoprene
rubber > 14 mils, natural rubber > 14 mils, polyethylene, polyvinyl chloride
> 14 mils, or viton > 14 mils

Follow manufacturer’s instructions for cleaning and maintaining PPE. If no

such instructions are given for washables, use detergent and hot water.

Keep and wash PPE separately from other laundry. Discard clothing and

other absorbent materials that have been drenched or heavily contaminat-

ed with this product’s concentrate. DO NOT reuse them.

Engineering Controls

Pilots must use an enclosed cockpit that meets the requirements listed in
the Worker Protection Standard (WPS) for agricultural pesticides [40 CFR
170.240(d)(6)].

USER SAFETY RECOMMENDATIONS

Users should:

e Wash hands before eating, drinking, chewing gum, using tobacco, or
using the toilet.

* Remove clothing/PPE immediately if pesticide gets inside. Then wash
thoroughly and put on clean clothing.

* Remove PPE immediately after handling this product. Wash the outside
of gloves before removing. As soon as possible, wash thoroughly and
change into clean clothing.

Physical and Chemical Hazards

Spray solutions of Arsenal® herbicide Applicators Concentrate must
be mixed, stored and applied only in stainless steel, fiberglass, plastic and
plastic-lined steel containers.

Thoroughly clean application equipment, including landing gear, immedi-
ately after use of this product. Prolonged exposure of this product to
uncoated steel (except stainless steel) surfaces may result in corrosion and
failure of the exposed part. The maintenance of an organic coating (paint)
may prevent corrosion.

Environmental Hazards

This product is toxic to plants. Drift and runoff may be hazardous to plants
in water adjacent to treated areas. DO NOT apply to water except as spec-
ified in this label. Treatment of aquatic weeds may result in oxygen deple-
tion or loss due to decomposition of dead plants. This oxygen loss may
cause the suffocation of some aquatic organisms. DO NOT treat more
than 1/2 of the surface area of the water in a single operation and wait at
least 10 to 14 days between treatments. Begin treatment along the shore
and proceed outward in bands to allow aquatic organisms to move into
untreated areas. DO NOT contaminate water when disposing of equip-
ment washwaters or rinsate.

This pesticide is toxic to vascular plants and must be used strictly in accor-
dance with the drift precautions on the label.

Directions For Use

It is a violation of federal law to use this product in a manner inconsistent
with its labeling.

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate must be used only in
accordance with the instructions on the leaflet label attached to the con-
tainer. Keep containers closed to avoid spills and contamination.

DO NOT apply this product in a way that will contact workers or other per-
sons, either directly or through drift. Only protected handlers may be in the
area during application.




AGRICULTURAL USE REQUIREMENTS

Use this product only in accordance with its labeling and with the
Worker Protection Standard, 40 CFR part 170. This standard contains
requirements for the protection of agricultural workers on farms, forests,
nurseries, and greenhouses, and handlers of agricultural pesticides. It
contains requirements for training, decontamination, notification, and
emergency assistance. It also contains specific instructions and excep-
tions pertaining to the statements on this label about personal protective
equipment (PPE) and restricted-entry interval. The requirements in this
box only apply to uses of this product that are covered by the Worker
Protection Standard.

DO NOT enter or allow worker entry into treated areas during the
restricted-entry interval (REI) of 48 hours.

PPE required for early entry to treated areas that is permitted under the
Worker Protection Standard and that involves contact with anything that
has been treated, such as plants, soil, or water, is:

e Coveralls

® Shoes plus socks

* Chemical-resistant gloves made of any waterproof material

* Protective eyewear

STORAGE AND DISPOSAL (continued)

NONAGRICULTURAL USE REQUIREMENTS

The requirements in this box apply to uses of this product that are NOT
within the scope of the Worker Protection Standard (WPS) for agricultur-
al pesticides (40 CFR Part 170). The WPS applies when this product is
used to produce agricultural plants on farms, forests, nurseries, or
greenhouses.

DO NOT enter or allow others to enter treated areas until sprays have
dried.

STORAGE AND DISPOSAL

DO NOT contaminate water, food or feed by storage or disposal.

Pesticide Storage
DO NOT store below 10° F.

Pesticide Disposal
Wastes resulting from the use of this product must be disposed of on-
site or at an approved waste disposal facility.

Container Handling

Nonrefillable Container. DO NOT reuse or refill this container.
Triple rinse or pressure rinse container (or equivalent) promptly after
emptying; then offer for recycling, if available, or reconditioning, if appro-
priate, or puncture and dispose of in a sanitary landfill, or by incineration,
or by other procedures approved by state and local authorities.

Triple rinse containers small enough to shake (capacity < 5 gal-
lons) as follows: Empty the remaining contents into application equip-
ment or a mix tank and drain for 10 seconds after the flow begins to
drip. Fill the container 1/4 full with water and recap. Shake for 10 sec-
onds. Pour rinsate into application equipment or a mix tank, or store rin-
sate for later use or disposal. Drain for 10 seconds after the flow begins
to drip. Repeat this procedure two more times.

Container Handling (continued)

Triple rinse containers too large to shake (capacity > 5 gallons) as
follows: Empty the remaining contents into application equipment or a
mix tank. Fill the container 1/4 full with water. Replace and tighten clo-
sures. Tip container on its side and roll it back and forth, ensuring at least
one complete revolution, for 30 seconds. Stand the container on its end
and tip it back and forth several times. Turn the container over onto its
other end and tip it back and forth several times. Empty the rinsate into
application equipment or a mix tank, or store rinsate for later use or dis-
posal. Repeat this procedure two more times.

Pressure rinse as follows: Empty the remaining contents into applica-
tion equipment or mix tank and continue to drain for 10 seconds after the
flow begins to drip. Hold container upside down over application equip-
ment or mix tank, or collect rinsate for later use or disposal. Insert pres-
sure rinsing nozzle in the side of the container and rinse at about 40 PSI
for at least 30 seconds. Drain for 10 seconds after the flow begins to drip.
Refillable Container. Refill this container with pesticide only. DO NOT
reuse this container for any other purpose. Triple rinsing the container
before final disposal is the responsibility of the person disposing of the
container. Cleaning before refilling is the responsibility of the refiller.
Triple rinse as follows: To clean the container before final disposal,
empty the remaining contents from this container into application equip-
ment or mix tank. Fill the container about 10% full with water. Agitate vig-
orously or recirculate water with the pump for 2 minutes. Pour or pump
rinsate into application equipment or rinsate collection system. Repeat
this rinsing procedure two more times.

When this container is empty, replace the cap and seal all openings that
have been opened during use; return the container to the point of pur-
chase or to a designated location. This container must only be refilled
with a pesticide product. Prior to refiling, inspect carefully for damage
such as cracks, punctures, abrasions, worn-out threads and closure
devices. Check for leaks after refilling and before transport. DO NOT
transport if this container is damaged or leaking. If the container is dam-
aged, or leaking, or obsolete and not returned to the point of purchase
or to a designated location, triple rinse emptied container and offer for
recycling, if available, or dispose of container in compliance with state

and local regulations.

(continued)

In Case of Emergency

In case of large-scale spillage regarding this product, call:
¢ CHEMTREC 1-800-424-9300

¢ BASF Corporation 1-800-832-HELP (4357)

In case of medical emergency regarding this product, call:
* Your local doctor for immediate treatment

 Your local poison control center (hospital)

* BASF Corporation ~ 1-800-832-HELP (4357)

Steps to be taken in case material is released or spilled:

¢ Dike and contain the spill with inert material (sand, earth, etc.) and trans-
fer liquid and solid diking material to separate containers for disposal.

* Remove contaminated clothing and wash affected skin areas with soap
and water.

* Wash clothing before reuse.

* Keep the spill out of all sewers and open bodies of water.



Product Information

Arsenal® herbicide Applicators Concentrate is an aqueous solution to
be mixed with water and a surfactant and applied as a spray solution to
control undesirable vegetation growing within specified aquatic sites,
forestry sites, pasture/rangeland and nonagricultural lands. Aquatic sites
consist of standing and flowing water, estuarine/marine, wetland, and ripar-
ian areas. Nonagricultural lands include private, public and military lands as
follows: uncultivated nonagricultural areas (including airports, highway, rail-
road and utility rights-of-way, sewage disposal areas, etc.); uncultivated
agricultural areas - noncrop producing (including farmyards, fuel storage
areas, fence rows, nonirrigation ditchbanks, barrier strips, etc.); industrial
sites - outdoor (including lumberyards, pipeline and tank farms, etc.); and
natural areas (including wildlife management areas, wildiife openings,
wildlife habitats, recreation areas, campgrounds, trailheads, and trails).
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may also be used for the
release of unimproved Bermudagrass and Bahiagrass, for bareground
weed control, and for use under certain paved surfaces.

Herbicidal Activity

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate will control most annual
and perennial grass and broadleaf weeds in addition to many brush and
vine species with some residual control of undesirable species that germi-
nate above the waterline. Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate is
readily absorbed through emergent leaves and stems and is translocated
rapidly throughout the plant with accumulation in the meristematic regions.
For maximum activity, weeds should be growing vigorously at the time of
application, and the spray solution should include a surfactant (see
Adjuvants section for specific use directions). Treated plants stop growing
soon after spray application. Chlorosis appears first in the newest leaves,
and necrosis spreads from this point. In perennials, the herbicide is translo-
cated into, and kills, underground or submerged storage organs, which
prevents regrowth. Chlorosis and tissue necrosis may not be apparent in
some plant species until 2 or more weeks after application. Complete kill of
plants may not occur for several weeks. Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate applications are rainfast 1 hour after treatment.

Use Information

Applications may be made for the control of undesirable vegetation grow-
ing within specified aquatic sites, forestry sites, pasture/rangeland and
nonagricultural lands. Aquatic sites consist of standing and flowing water;
estuarine/marine, wetland, and riparian areas; for control of most annual
and perennial grass weeds, broadleaf weeds, vines and brambles, and
hardwood brush and trees for forestry site preparation and release of
conifers from woody and herbaceous competition. Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate may be used for selective woody and herba-
ceous weed control in natural regeneration of certain conifers (see Conifer
Release Treatment).

Nonagricultural lands include private, public and military lands as follows:
uncultivated nonagricultural areas (including airports, highway, railroad and
utility rights-of-way, sewage disposal areas, etc.); uncultivated agricultural
areas - noncrop producing (including farmyards, fuel storage areas, fence
rows, nonirrigation ditchbanks, barrier strips, etc.); industrial sites - outdoor
(including lumberyards, pipeline and tank farms, etc.); and natural areas
(including wildlife management areas, wildlife openings, wildlife habitats,
recreation areas, campgrounds, trailheads, and trails).

Precautions
* Keep from contact with fertilizers, insecticides, fungicides and seeds.

e Clean application equipment after using this product by thoroughly flush-
ing with water.

Restrictions

* DO NOT use on food crops.

* DO NOT apply this product within 1/2 mile upstream of an active potable
water intake in flowing water (i.e. river, stream, etc.) or within 1/2 mile of
an active potable water intake in a standing body of water, such as a lake,
pond, or reservoir.

* DO NOT apply to water used for irrigation except as described in
Product Use Precautions and Restrictions section of this label.

¢ DO NOT drain or flush equipment on or near desirable trees or other
plants, or on areas where their roots may extend, or in locations where
the treated soil may be washed or moved into contact with their roots.

* DO NOT use on lawns, walks, driveways, tennis courts, or similar areas.

* DO NOT side trim desirable vegetation with this product unless severe
injury and plant death can be tolerated. Prevent drift of spray to desirable
plants.

Site Specific Restrictions

Nonagricultural Lands and Forestry Sites

¢ DO NOT apply more than 1.5 Ibs acid equivalent (ae) imazapyr (equiva-
lent to 48 fl ozs of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate) per
acre per year.

Pasture/Rangeland Sites

e For spot treatment only.

* DO NOT treat more than 1/10 of the available area to be grazed or cut
for hay.

e DO NOT apply more than 0.75 Ib ae imazapyr (equivalent to 24 fl ozs of
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate) per acre per year.

Aquatic Sites
* DO NOT apply more than 1.5 Ibs ae imazapyr (equivalent to 48 fl ozs of
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate) per acre per year.
e Public waters - Application of Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate to water can only be made by federal or state agencies,
such as Water Management District personnel, municipal officials, and
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, or those applicators who are licensed
or certified as aquatic pest control applicators and are authorized by the
state or local government. Treatment to other than non-native invasive
species is limited to only those plants that have been determined to be a
nuisance by a federal or state government entity.
Aerial application - Aerial application to aquatic sites is restricted to
helicopter only.
Irrigation water - Application to water used for irrigation that results in
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate residue greater than 1.0
ppb MUST NOT be used for irrigation purposes for 120 days after
application or until Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate
residue levels are determined by laboratory analysis or other appropriate
means of analysis to be 1.0 ppb or less. When applications are made
within 500 feet of an active irrigation intake, DO NOT irrigate for at least
24 hours following application to allow for dissipation.

Recreational Use of Water in Treatment Area
There are no restrictions on the use of water in the treatment area for recre-
ational purposes, including swimming and fishing.

Livestock Use of Water in/from Treatment Area
There are no restrictions on livestock consumption of water from the
treatment area.




Potable Water Intakes

DO NOT apply Arsenal® herbicide Applicators Concentrate directly to
water within 1/2 mile upstream of an active potable water intake in flowing
water (i.e. river, stream, etc.) or within 1/2 mile of an active potable water
intake in a standing body of water such as a lake, pond, or reservoir. To
make aquatic applications around and within 1/2 mile of active potable
water intakes, the water intake must be turned off during application and
for a minimum of 48 hours after the application. These aquatic applications
may be made only in the cases where there are alternative water sources
or holding ponds that would permit the turning off of an active potable
water intake for a minimum period of 48 hours after the applications.
NOTE: Existing potable water intakes that are no longer in use, such as
those replaced by connections to wells or a municipal water system, are
not considered to be active potable water intakes. This restriction does not
apply to intermittent, inadvertent overspray of water in terrestrial use sites.

Quiescent or Slow-moving Waters

In lakes and reservoirs, DO NOT apply Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate within one (1) mile of an active irrigation water intake during
the irrigation season. Applications less than one (1) mile from an active irri-
gation water intake may be made during the off-season, provided that the
irrigation intake will remain inactive for a minimum of 120 days after appli-
cation or until Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate residue lev-
els are determined by laboratory analysis or other appropriate means of
analysis to be 1.0 ppb or less.

Avoiding Injury to Nontarget Plants
If treated vegetation is to be removed from the application site, DO NOT use
the vegetative matter as mulch or compost on or around desirable species.

Precautions for Avoiding
Injury to Nontarget Plants

Untreated desirable plants can be affected by root uptake of Arsenal
herbicide Applicators Concentrate from treated soil. Injury or loss of
desirable plants may result if Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate
is applied on or near desirable plants, on areas where their roots extend, or
in locations where the treated soil may be washed or moved into contact
with their roots. When making application along shorelines where desirable
plants may be present, use caution to avoid spray contact with their foliage
or spray application to the soil in which they are rooted. Shoreline plants that
have roots which extend into the water in an area where Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate has been applied generally will not be adversely
affected by uptake of the herbicide from the water.

Managing Off-target Movement
Aerial Application

* Applicators are required to use a coarse or coarser droplet size (ASABE
S572) or, if specifically using a spinning atomizer nozzle, applicators are
required to use a volume mean diameter (VMD) of 385 microns or greater
for release heights below 10 feet. Applicators are required to use a very
coarse or coarser droplet size or, if specifically using a spinning atomizer
nozzle, applicators are required to use a VMD of 475 microns or greater
for release heights above 10 feet. Applicators must consider the effects
of nozzle orientation and flight speed when determining droplet size.

¢ Applicators are required to use upwind swath displacement.

* The boom length must not exceed 60% of the wingspan or 90% of the
rotor blade diameter to reduce spray drift.

* Applications with wind speeds less than 3 mph and with wind speeds
greater than 10 mph are prohibited.

¢ Applications into temperature inversions are prohibited.

Ground Boom Application

* Applicators are required to use a nozzle height below 4 feet above the
ground or plant canopy and coarse or coarser droplet size (ASABE S572)
or, if specifically using a spinning atomizer nozzle, applicators are required
to use a volume mean diameter (VMD) of 385 microns or greater.

¢ Applications with wind speeds greater than 10 mph are prohibited.

* Applications into temperature inversions are prohibited.

Wind Erosion

Avoid treating powdery, dry or light sandy soils when conditions are favor-
able for wind erosion. Under these conditions, the soil surface should first
be settled by rainfall or irrigation.

Adjuvants

Postemergence applications of Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate require the addition of a spray adjuvant. When making
aquatic applications, only spray adjuvants approved or appropriate for
aquatic use must be utilized.

Nonionic Surfactant

Use a nonionic surfactant (NIS) at the rate of 0.25% volume/volume (v/v) or
higher (see manufacturer’s label) of the spray solution (0.25% v/v is equiv-
alent to 1 quart in 100 gallons). For best results, select a nonionic surfac-
tant with an HLB (hydrophilic to lipophilic balance) ratio between 12 and 17
with at least 70% surfactant in the formulated product. Alcohols, fatty
acids, oils, ethylene glycol or diethylene glycol should not be considered as
surfactants to meet the above requirements.

Methylated Seed Oil or Vegetable Oil Concentrate
Instead of a surfactant, a methylated seed oil (MSO) or vegetable-based
seed oil concentrate may be used at the rate of 1.5 to 2 pints per acre.
When using spray volumes greater than 30 gallons per acre, methylated
seed oil or vegetable-based seed oil concentrates should be mixed at a
rate of 1% of the total spray volume, or alternatively use a nonionic surfac-
tant as described above. Research indicates that these oils may aid in
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate deposition and uptake by
plants under moisture or temperature stress.

Silicone-based Surfactant

See manufacturer’s label for specific rates. Silicone-based surfactants may
reduce the surface tension of the spray droplet allowing greater spreading
on the leaf surface as compared to conventional nonionic surfactants.
However, some silicone-based surfactants may dry too quickly, limiting
herbicide uptake.

Invert Emulsions

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate can be applied as an invert
emulsion. The spray solution results in an invert (water-in-oil) spray emul-
sion designed to minimize spray drift and spray runoff, resulting in more
herbicide on the target foliage. The spray emulsion may be formed in a sin-
gle tank (batch mixing) or injected (in-line mixing). Consult the invert chem-
ical label for proper mixing directions.

Other
An antifoaming agent, spray pattern indicator, or drift-reducing agent may
be applied at the product labeled rate if necessary or desired.

Tank Mixes

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be tank mixed with
other herbicides.

Consult manufacturer’s labels for specific rate restrictions and weeds con-
trolled. Always follow the more restrictive label restrictions and precautions
for all products used when making an application involving tank mixes.




Application Methods

Arsenal® herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be selectively applied
using low-volume directed application techniques or may be broadcast-
applied using ground equipment, watercraft, or aircraft. Aerial applications
to aquatic sites must be made by helicopter. In addition, Arsenal
herbicide Applicators Concentrate may also be applied using cut-
stump, cut-stem, and frill or girdle treatment techniques within nonagricul-
tural lands, pasture/rangeland, and aquatic sites (see Aerial Application
and Ground Application sections for additional details).

Aerial Application

All precautions must be taken to minimize or eliminate spray drift. Both fixed-
wing aircraft and helicopters can be used to apply Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate on nonagricultural lands, but only helicopters
can be used for aquatic applications. DO NOT make applications by fixed-
wing aircraft or helicopter unless appropriate buffer zones can be main-
tained to prevent spray drift out of the target area, or when treating open
tracts of land, spray drift as a result of fixed-wing aircraft application can be
tolerated. Aerial equipment designed to minimize spray drift, such as a hel-
icopter equipped with a Microfoil™ boom, Thru-Valve™ boom, or rain-
drop nozzles, must be used and calibrated. Except when applying with a
Microfoil boom, a drift control agent may be added at the specified label
rate. DO NOT side trim with Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate unless death of treated tree can be tolerated.

Uniformly apply the specified amount of Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate in 2 to 30 gallons of water per acre. A foam-reducing agent
may be added at the specified label rate, if needed.

Thoroughly clean application equipment, including landing gear, immedi-
ately after use of this product. Prolonged exposure of this product to
uncoated steel (except stainless steel) surfaces may result in corrosion and
failure of the exposed part. The maintenance of an organic coating (paint)
may prevent corrosion.

Ground Application

Foliar Application

Low-volume Foliar Application

Use equipment calibrated to deliver 5 to 20 gallons of spray solution per
acre. To prepare the spray solution, thoroughly mix in water 0.25% to
2.50% Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate plus surfactant (see
the Adjuvants section of this label for specific use directions). A foam-
reducing agent may be applied at the specified label rate, if needed. For
control of difficult species (see Aquatic Weeds Controlled section and
the Terrestrial Weeds Controlled section for relative susceptibility of
weed species), use the higher concentrations of herbicide and/or spray vol-
umes, but DO NOT apply more than 3 pints of Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate per acre in aquatic sites and nonagricultural
lands and 1.5 pints per acre in pasture/rangeland. Excessive wetting of
foliage is not necessary.

For low-volume foliar application, select proper nozzles to avoid overappli-
cation. Proper application is critical to ensure desirable results. Best results
are achieved when the spray covers the crown and approximately 70 per-
cent of the plant. The use of an even, flat-fan tip with a spray angle of
40 degrees or less will aid in proper deposition.

Appropriate tip sizes include 4004E or 1504E. For a straight-stream and
cone pattern, adjustable cone nozzles, such as 5500 X3 or 5500 X4, may
be used. Attaching a rollover valve onto a Spraying Systems Model 30 gun-
jet or other similar spray gun allows for the use of both flat-fan and cone
tips on the same gun.

Moisten, but DO NOT drench target vegetation causing spray solution to
run off.

Low-volume Foliar Application with Backpack. For low-growing
species, spray down on the crown, covering crown and penetrating
approximately 70% of the plant.

For target species 4 to 8 feet tall, swipe the sides of target vegetation by
directing spray to at least 2 sides of the plant in smooth vertical motions from
the crown to the bottom. Make sure to cover the crown whenever possible.
For target species over 8 feet tall, lace sides of the target vegetation by
directing spray to at least 2 sides of the target in smooth zigzag motions
from crown to bottom.

Low-volume Foliar Application with Hydraulic Handgun Application
Equipment. Use the same technique as described above for Low-
volume Foliar Application with Backpack.

For broadcast applications, simulate a gentle rain near the top of target veg-
etation allowing spray to contact the crown and penetrate the target foliage
without falling to the understory. Herbicide spray solution that contacts the
understory may result in severe injury or death of plants in the understory.

High-volume Foliar Application

For optimum performance when spraying medium-density to high-density
vegetation, use equipment calibrated to deliver up to 100 gallons of spray
solution per acre (GPA). Spray solutions exceeding 100 GPA may result in
excessive spray runoff, causing increased ground cover injury and injury to
desirable species. To prepare the spray solution, thoroughly mix Arsenal
herbicide Applicators Concentrate in water and add a surfactant (see
Adjuvants section for specific use directions and rates for surfactants). A
foam-reducing agent may be added at the specified label rate, if needed.
For control of difficult species (see Aquatic Weeds Controlled chart and
the Terrestrial Weeds Controlled section for relative susceptibility of
weed species), use the higher concentrations of herbicide and/or spray vol-
umes, but DO NOT apply more than 3 pints of Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate per acre in aquatic sites and nonagricultural
lands and 1.5 pints per acre in pasture/rangeland. Uniformly cover the
foliage of the vegetation to be controlled, but DO NOT apply to runoff.
Excessive wetting of foliage is not necessary.

Side Trimming

DO NOT side trim with Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate
unless severe injury or death of the treated tree can be tolerated. Arsenal
herbicide Applicators Concentrate is readily translocated and can result
in death of the entire tree.

Cut-surface Treatment

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be used to control
undesirable woody vegetation by applying the Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate solution to the cambium area of freshly cut
stump surfaces or to fresh cuts on the stem of the target woody vegetation.
Applications can be made at any time of the year except during periods of
heavy sap flow in the spring. DO NOT overapply solution causing runoff
from the cut surface.

Injury may occur to desirable woody plants if the shoots extend from the same
root system or their root systems are grafted to those of the treated tree.



Cut-surface Application with Dilute and

Concentrate Solutions

Arsenal® herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be mixed as either

a concentrate or dilute solution. The dilute solution may be used for appli-

cations to the cut surface of the stump or to cuts on the stem of the tar-

get woody vegetation. Concentrate solutions may be used for applica-
tions to cuts on the stem. Use of the concentrate solution permits appli-
cation to fewer cuts on the stem, especially for large-diameter trees.

Follow the application instructions for proper application techniques for

each type of solution.

* To prepare a dilute solution, mix 4 to 6 fluid ounces of Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate with 1 gallon of water. A surfactant or pene-
trating agent may improve uptake through partially callused cambiums.

* To prepare a concentrate solution, mix 1 quart of Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate with no more than 1 pint of water.

Cut-stump Treatment

Dilute Solution. Spray or brush the solution onto the cambium area of
the freshly cut stump surface. Ensure that the solution thoroughly wets
the entire cambium area (the wood next to the bark of the stump).

Cut-stem Treatment

(injection, hack-and-squirt)

Dilute Solution. Using standard injection equipment, apply 1 millliter of
solution at each injection site around the tree with no more than 1-inch
intervals between cut edges. Ensure that the injector completely penetrates
the bark at each injection site.

Concentrate Solution. Using standard injection equipment, apply 1 milli-
liter of solution at each injection site. Make at least 1 injection cut for every
3 inches of diameter at breast height (DBH) on the target tree. For example,
a 3-inch DBH tree will receive 1 injection cut, and a 6-inch DBH tree wil
receive 2 injection cuts. On trees requiring more than 1 injection site, place
the injection cuts at approximately equal intervals around the tree.

Frill or Girdle Treatment

Using a hatchet, machete, or chainsaw, make cuts through the bark and
completely around the tree to expose the cambium. The cut should angle
downward extending into the cambium enough to expose at least 2 growth
rings. Using a spray applicator or brush, apply a 12.5% to 50.0% solution
of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate into each cut until thor-
oughly wet. Avoid applying so much herbicide that runoff to the ground or
water occurs.

Forestry Use

Site Preparation Treatment

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be used to control
labeled grass weeds, broadleaf weeds, vines and brambles, and woody
brush and trees on forest sites in advance of regeneration for the following

conifer crop species:

Common Name Scientific Name (ﬂ%iz/eA)
Loblolly pine Pinus taeda

Loblolly X pitch hybrid

Longleaf pine Pinus palustris 24 10 40
Shortleaf pine Pinus echinata

Virginia pine Pinus virginiana

Slash pine Pinus elliottii 20 to 32
Coastal redwood Sequoia sempervirens

Douglas fir Pseudotsuga menziesii 12to 24
Western hemlock Tsuga heterophylla

California red fir Abies magnifica

California white fir Abies concolor 121020
Jack pine Pinus banksiana

Lodgepole pine Pinus contorta

Pitch pine Pinus rigida

Ponderosa pine Pinus ponderosa

Sugar pine Pinus lambertiana 12to 16
White pine Pinus strobus

Black spruce Picea mariana

Red spruce Picea rubens

White spruce Picea glauca

Use the label rate of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate per
acre applied as a broadcast foliar spray for long-term control of labeled
woody plants and residual control of herbaceous weeds. Within 4 to 6
weeks of treatment, grass and other herbaceous weeds will be controlled
and may provide fuel to facilitate a site preparation burn, if desired, to con-
trol conifers or other species tolerant to the herbicide.

Apply the label rate of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate per
acre in 5 to 30 gallons total spray solution for helicopter applications or 5 to
100 gallons total spray solution for mechanical ground spray and backpack
applications. Use a minimum of 1/2 percent by volume nonionic surfactant
(NIS). Use the higher label rates of Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate and higher spray volumes when controlling particularly dense
or multilayered canopies of hardwood stands, or difficult-to-control species.
In certain cases, tank mixes may be necessary for chemical control of
conifers and other species tolerant to Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate. Observe all precautions and restrictions on the product
labels. Always follow the most restrictive label. Combinations with other
products labeled for forest site preparation may kil certain plants such as
legumes and blackberry, which are desirable for wildlife habitat.



Where quick initial brownout (deadening of foliage) is desired for burning,
apply a tank mixture of 16 fl ozs to 32 fl ozs Arsenal® herbicide
Applicators Concentrate with 16 ozs to 64 ozs glyphosate or 16 ozs to
48 ozs triclopyr ester per acre. For control of seedling pines, apply 16 fl ozs
to 32 fl ozs Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate with 3 to
4 quarts glyphosate. For site preparation, rates less than 24 fl ozs Arsenal
herbicide Applicators Concentrate will provide suppression of hard-
wood brush and trees; some resprouting may occur.

DO NOT plant seedlings of black spruce (Picea mariana) or white spruce
(Picea glauca) on sites that have been broadcast-treated with Arsenal her-
bicide Applicators Concentrate or into the treated zone of spot or band-
ed applications for three months following application or injury may occur.

Herbaceous Weed Control
Use Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate for selective weeding
in the following conifers:

Common Name Scientific Name (ﬂF;z;(/eA)
Loblolly pine Pinus taeda

Loblolly X pitch hybrid 6to 10
Virginia pine Pinus virginiana

Longleaf pine’ Pinus palustris

Slash pine’ Pinus elliottii 4t06

Douglas fir' Pseudotsuga menziesii

'Use of surfactant is not recommended.

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be applied as a
broadcast treatment, banded over tree rows, or as a directed spray for
release of young conifers from herbaceous weeds. To prevent possibility of
conifer injury, DO NOT apply Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate when conifers are under stress from drought, disease, ani-
mal or winter injury, planting shock, or other stresses reducing conifer
vigor. Broadcast applications may be made by helicopter, ground, or back-
pack sprayer. For difficult-to-control weeds, use the higher labeled rates.
Where herbaceous weeds have overtopped conifer seedlings, a nonionic
surfactant may be added to improve weed control (except for slash pine,
long-leaf pine, and Douglas fir), at a rate not to exceed 1/4 percent of spray
solution volume. Some minor conifer growth inhibition may be observed
when herbaceous weed control treatments are made during periods of
active conifer growth.

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may also be applied using
backpack or handheld sprayers to control herbaceous weeds around indi-
vidual conifer seedlings. Mix 0.4 fl oz to 0.6 fl oz Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate and 0.2 oz nonionic surfactant per gallon of
water. Direct the spray to the weeds and minimize the amount applied to
conifer foliage for best conifer tolerance. Ensure that maximum labeled
rates per acre for previously listed crop species are not exceeded.
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be tank mixed with
sulfometuron to broaden the spectrum of weeds controlled. For loblolly
pine, apply 4 fl ozs to 6 fl ozs Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate plus 1 0z to 2 ozs sulfometuron per acre. The application of
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate plus sulfometuron on other
conifer species may cause growth suppression.

Conifer Release Treatment

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be applied as a
broadcast or directed spray application for suppression of labeled brush,
tree, and herbaceous weed species. Directed spray applications may be
made with low-volume applications in conifer stands of all ages by targeting
the unwanted vegetation and avoiding direct application to the conifer.
Ensure that maximum labeled rates per acre listed for the following crop
species are not exceeded.

Broadcast Applications for release of the following conifers from

hardwood competition:

Common Name Scientific Name (ﬂFc‘fz’;?A)
Loblolly pine* Pinus taeda

Loblolly X pitch hybrid® 12t0 20
Virginia pine® Pinus virginiana

Atlantic white cedar” Chamaecyparis thyoides

Longleaf pine Pinus palustris

Pitch pine Pinus rigida 1210 16
Shortleaf pine Pinus echinata

Slash pine Pinus elliottii

White pine’ Pinus strobus 8to 16
California red fir Abies magnifica

California white fir Abies concolor

Lodgepole pine? Pinus contorta fro12
Douglas fir* Pseudotsuga menziesii

Jack pine? Pinus banksiana

Black spruce® Picea mariana

Red spruce? Picea rubens fro12
White spruce? Picea glauca

"DO NOT make applications to white pine stands younger than three
years old. To minimize potential white pine injury, release treatments
should not be made prior to July 15.

2 Applications should be made after formation of final conifer resting buds
in the fall or height growth inhibition may occur.

* Mid-rotation release: For broadcast applications below the pine canopy
in established stands of loblolly pine, loblolly X pitch hybrid, and Virginia
pine, use 16 fl ozs to 32 fl ozs product per acre. For mid-rotation release
of other species, use rates listed in chart above.

“ Apply Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate after July 15 and
before hardwood defoliation in the fall. The use of rates below 16 ozs/A
are intended for hardwood growth suppression and some hardwood
resprouting should be expected.

For slash pine and longleaf pine, broadcast release treatments over
the top of pines for the purpose of woody plant control must be
made after August 15 and only in stands 2 through 5 years old. For
applications over the top of slash pine and longleaf pine, DO NOT
add surfactant and use lower labeled rates on sandy soils.



Apply the label rate of Arsenal® herbicide Applicators Concentrate per
acre when making broadcast applications with helicopter or ground spray
equipment. Refer to mixing and application instructions for proper spray
volumes. A nonionic surfactant may be added at no more than 1/4 percent
by volume.

Use the higher label rates of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate
when controlling particularly dense stands or difficult-to-control species.
Some minor conifer growth inhibition may be observed when release treat-
ments are made during periods of active conifer growth. To minimize
potential conifer height growth inhibition, DO NOT make broadcast appli-
cations to conifer stands except loblolly pine before the end of the second
growing season. To minimize potential conifer height growth inhibition,
broadcast release treatments may be made late in the growing season. To
prevent possibility of conifer injury, DO NOT apply Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate when conifers are under stress from drought,
disease, animal or winter injury, or other stresses reducing conifer vigor.
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be used to release
loblolly pine seedlings during the first growing season following planting or
for one-year-old natural loblolly pine regeneration. For one-year-old loblolly
pine release, apply 12 fl ozs to 20 fl ozs/A of Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate after July 15. Rates below 16 fl ozs/A are
intended for hardwood growth suppression; some hardwood resprouting
should be expected.

Spot Treatment of Undesirable Hardwood
Vegetation

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be used as a directed
foliar or cut-stem application to control undesirable brush and hardwoods
in the management of stands of all ages for the conifer species listed in the
broadcast application section above. Refer to mixing and application
instructions in the directed foliar or cut-stem sections above for proper use
rates, equipment, and application techniques. DO NOT exceed maximum
labeled rates per acre listed for crop species. Cut-stem applications may
be used for spot treatment of undesirable hardwoods in Ponderosa pine
stands using 12 fl ozs or less of product per acre.

Avoid direct application to desired plant species or injury may occur. Injury
may occur to nontarget or desirable hardwoods or conifers if they extend
from the same root system, or their root systems are grafted to those of the
treated tree, or their roots extend into the treated zone.

Late Rotation Vegetation Control in Western
Conifer

In California, the Pacific Northwest and Inland Northwest, broadcast aerial
applications of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate up to
24 fl ozs/A are permissible in conifer stands that are targeted for harvesting
the year following treatment. Use minimum spray volume of 15 gallons per
acre. Significant conifer injury or mortality must be expected. DO NOT use
this treatment if conifer injury or mortality cannot be tolerated.

Bag and Spray Application for

Conifer Release

In Douglas fir and Ponderosa pine stands, broadcast applications of
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate up to 16 fl ozs/A are per-
missible when the trees are covered by bags prior to the application. The
bags must prevent the spray mix from contacting the conifer foliage. On
sites with coarse textured soils (e.g. decomposed granite, pumice, sandy
or rocky sites) or low levels of soil organic matter (generally 5% or less), sig-
nificant conifer growth inhibition and mortality is possible. DO NOT use this
treatment on these types of sites if conifer growth inhibition and mortality
cannot be tolerated.

Nonagricultural Land Use

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be used for woody
and herbaceous weed control in nonagricultural lands including private,
public and military lands as follows: uncultivated nonagricultural areas
(including airports, highway, railroad and utility rights-of-way, sewage dis-
posal areas, etc.); uncultivated agricultural areas - noncrop producing
(including farmyards, fuel storage areas, fence rows, nonirrigation ditch-
banks, barrier strips, etc.); industrial sites - outdoor (including lumberyards,
pipeline and tank farms, etc.); and natural areas (including wildlife manage-
ment areas, wildlife openings, wildlife habitats, recreation areas, camp-
grounds, trailheads, and trails).

Applications to nonagricultural lands are not applicable to treatment of
commercial timber or other plants being grown for sale or other commercial
use, or for commercial seed production, or for research purposes.

Brush Control
Use the specified rate of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate with
the preferred application technique for the control of undesirable brush.

Tank Mixes and Application Rates for Low-volume Foliar Brush
Control*

Arsenal herbicide
Applicators

Target Vegetation Concentrate Rate Tank Mix
(by volume)
Mixed hardwoods
without elm, locust, 0.50 to 0.75% Surfactant

or pine

Accord® at 2% to
3% by volume plus
surfactant

Krenite® at 2% to
5% by volume plus

Mixed hardwoods
containing elm,
locust, and pine

0.25 to 0.50%

Mixed hardwoods

with locust and pine 0.25 to 0.50%

but no eim surfactant
Mixed hardwoods E:corl‘” at 2 ozs/A
with locust and elm 0.25 to 0.50%
. 2.3 grams/gal plus
but no pine
surfactant

*Tank mixes with 2,4-D or products containing 2,4-D have resulted in
reduced Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate efficacy.

Backpack and Handheld Spray Mixing Guide

Product per gallon Pr:_ dl;Tltoﬁer
% Solution of mix bagkpack
(fl ozs) (fl ozs)
0.25% 03 1.3
0.5% 0.6 2.6
1.0% 1.3 5.1
2.0% 26 10.2
3.0% 3.8 15.4
5.0% 6.4 25.6




Measuring Chart

128 ounces = 1 gallon
16 ounces = 1 pint

8 pints = 1 gallon
4 quarts = 1 gallon
2 pints = 1 quart

Selective Control of Undesirable Weeds in
Unimproved Bermudagrass and Bahiagrass
Arsenal® herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be used on unim-
proved Bermudagrass and Bahiagrass turf such as roadsides, utility rights-
of-way, and other nonagricultural lands. The application of Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate on established common and coastal
Bermudagrass and Bahiagrass provides control of labeled broadleaf and
grass weeds. Competition from these weeds is eliminated, releasing the
Bermudagrass and Bahiagrass. Treatment of Bermudagrass with Arsenal
herbicide Applicators Concentrate results in a compacted growth habit
and seedhead inhibition.

Uniformly apply with properly calibrated ground equipment using at least
10 gallons of water per acre.

Temporary yellowing of grass may occur when treatment is made after
growth commences.

Restrictions

* DO NOT add surfactant in excess of the specified rate (1 fl oz per 25 gal-
lons of spray solution).

¢ DO NOT apply to grass during its first growing season.

* DO NOT apply to grass that is under stress from drought, disease,
insects, or other causes.

Dosage Rate and Timing

Bermudagrass. Apply Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate at
3 fl ozs to 6 fl ozs per acre when the Bermudagrass is dormant. Apply
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate at 3 fl ozs to 4 fl ozs per
acre after the Bermudagrass has reached full greenup. Applications made
during greenup will delay greenup. Include a surfactant in the spray solution.
For additional preemergence control of annual grass and small-seeded
broadleaf weeds, add Pendulum® AquaCap™ herbicide at the rate of 3.1
to 6.3 pints per acre. Consult the Pendulum AquaCap label for weeds
controlled and for other use directions and precautions.

For control of Johnsongrass in Bermudagrass turf, apply Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate at 4 fl ozs per acre, plus Roundup® herbicide
at 12 ozs per acre, plus surfactant. For additional control of broadleaves
and vines, Garlon® 3A herbicide may be added to the above mix at the
rate of 1 to 2 pints per acre. Observe all precautions and restrictions on the
Garlon 3A and Roundup labels.

Bahiagrass. Apply Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate at
2 fl ozs to 4 fl ozs per acre when the Bahiagrass is dormant or after the
grass has initiated greenup but has not exceeded 25% greenup. Include a
surfactant in the spray solution (see Adjuvants section for specific use
directions for surfactants).

Weeds Controlled in Unimproved Bermudagrass and Bahiagrass

Common Name Scientific Name

Bedstraw™ Galium spp.
Bishopweed* Ptilimnium capillaceum
Buttercup* Ranunculus parviflorus
Carolina geranium Geranium carolinianum
Fescue Festuca spp.

Foxtail Setaria spp.

Little barley Hordeum pusillum
Seedling Johnsongrass Sorghum halepense
White clover Trifolium repens

Wild carrot Daucus carota

Yellow woodsorrel Oxalis stricta

*Use not permitted in California unless otherwise directed by supplemen-
tal labeling.

Grass Growth and Seedhead Suppression

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be used to suppress
growth and seedhead development of certain turfgrass in unimproved
areas. When Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate is applied to
desirable turf, it may result in temporary turf damage and/or discoloration.
Effects to the desirable turf may vary with environmental conditions. For
optimum performance, application should be made prior to culm elonga-
tion. Applications may be made before or after mowing. If applied prior to
mowing, allow at least 3 days of active growth before mowing. If applied
following a mowing, allow sufficient time for the grasses to recover before
applying this product or injury may be amplified.

DO NOT APPLY to turf under stress (drought, cold, insect damage, etc.)
or severe injury or death may occur.

Bermudagrass. Apply Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate at
3 fl ozs to 4 fl ozs per acre from early greenup to prior to seedhead initia-
tion. DO NOT add a surfactant for this application.

Cool-season Unimproved Turf. Apply Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate at 1 fl oz per acre plus 0.25% nonionic surfactant. For
increased suppression, Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate
may be tank mixed with such products as Campaign® herbicide (24 ozs
per acre) or Embark® growth regulator (8 ozs per acre). Tank mixes may
increase injury to desired turf. Consult each product label for labeled turf
species and other use directions and precautions. Tank mixes with 2,4-D
or products containing 2,4-D may decrease the effectiveness of Arsenal
herbicide Applicators Concentrate.

Total Vegetation Control where Bare Ground is
Desired

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate is an effective herbicide for
preemergence or postemergence control of many annual and perennial
broadleaf and grass weeds where bare ground is desired. Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate is particularly effective on hard-to-control
perennial grasses. Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate at 0.75
to 3 pints per acre can be used alone or in tank mix with herbicides
approved for use in bare ground. The degree and duration of control are
dependent on the rate of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate
used, tank mix partner, the volume of carrier, soil texture, rainfall, and other
conditions.

Consult manufacturer’s labels for specific rates and weeds controlled.
Always follow the more restrictive label restrictions and precautions for all
products used when making an application involving tank mixes.




Applications of Arsenal® herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be
made any time of the year. Use equipment calibrated to deliver desired gal-
lons per acre spray volume and uniformly distribute the spray pattern over
the treated area.

Postemergence Application. Always use a spray adjuvant (see
Adjuvants section of this label) when making a postemergence application.
For optimum performance on tough-to-control annual grass weeds, apply
at a total volume of 100 gallons per acre or less. For quicker burndown or
brownout of target weeds, Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate
may be tank mixed with Roundup® herbicide. Tank mixes with 2,4-D or
products containing 2,4-D may reduce the performance of Arsenal
herbicide Applicators Concentrate. Always follow the more restrictive
label restrictions and precautions for all products used when tank mixing.
Spot Treatment. Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be
used as a follow-up treatment to control escapes or weed encroachment
in a bareground situation. To prepare the spray solution, thoroughly mix in
each gallon of water 0.25% to 2.5% Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate plus an adjuvant. For increased burndown, include
Roundup as a tank mixture. For added residual weed control or to
increase the weed spectrum, add Pendulum® AquaCap™ herbicide,
Overdrive® herbicide, or diuron. Always follow the more restrictive label
restrictions and precautions for all products used when tank mixing.

Control of Undesirable Weeds under Paved
Surfaces

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate can be used under asphalt,
pond liners and other paved areas, ONLY in industrial sites or where the
pavement has a suitable barrier along the perimeter that prevents
encroachment of roots of desirable plants.

Use Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate only where the area to
be treated has been prepared according to good construction practices. If
rhizomes, stolons, tubers or other vegetative plant parts are present in the
site, remove them by scalping with a grader blade to a depth sufficient to
ensure their complete removal.

Follow Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate applications with
paving as soon as possible. DO NOT apply where the chemical may con-
tact the roots of desirable trees or other plants.

This product is not to be used under pavement on residential properties,
such as driveways or parking lots, or for use in recreational areas, such as
under bike or jogging paths, golf cart paths, or tennis courts, or where
landscape plantings could be anticipated.

Injury or death of desirable plants may result if this product is applied where
roots are present or where roots may extend into the treated area. Roots
of trees and shrubs may extend a considerable distance beyond the
branch extremities (drip line).

Apply to the soil surface only when final grade is established. DO NOT move
soil following Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate application.
Apply Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate in sufficient water (at
least 100 gals per acre) to ensure thorough and uniform wetting of the soil
surface, including the shoulder areas. Add Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate at a rate of 3 pints per acre (1.1 fluid ounces
per 1000 square feet) to clean water in the spray tank during the filling
operation. Agitate before spraying.

If the soil is not moaist prior to treatment, incorporation of Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate is needed for herbicide activation. Incorporate
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate into the soil to a depth of 4
to 6 inches using a rototiller or disc. Rainfall or irrigation of 1 inch will also
provide uniform incorporation. DO NOT allow treated soil to wash or move
into untreated areas.

Spot Treatment and

Crack-and-crevice Treatment

Use Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate as an initial or follow-
up treatment to control weed escapes or weed encroachment in a bare-
ground situation, including cracks and crevices in paved surfaces such as
roadways, runways, and parking areas.

Grass Pasture and Rangeland
Spot Treatment Weed Control

For the control of undesirable vegetation in grass pasture and rangeland,
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be applied as a spot
treatment at a rate of 1 to 24 fluid ounces of product per treated acre using
any of the described ground application methods. Spot applications to
grass pasture and rangeland may not exceed more than 1/10 of the area
to be grazed or cut for hay. See appropriate sections of this label for spe-
cific use directions for the application method and vegetation control
desired. DO NOT apply more than 24 fluid ounces per acre per year.

Grazing and Haying Restrictions

e There are no grazing restrictions following Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate application.

* DO NOT cut forage grass for hay for 7 days after Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate application.

Rangeland Use Instructions

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be applied to range-

land for the control of undesirable vegetation to achieve one or more of the

following vegetation management objectives:

e Control of undesirable (nonnative, invasive and noxious) plant species

* Control of undesirable vegetation to aid in the establishment of desirable
rangeland plant species

* Control of undesirable vegetation to aid in the establishment of desirable
rangeland vegetation following a fire

¢ Control of undesirable vegetation to reduce wildfire fuel

* Release of existing desirable rangeland plant communities from the com-
petitive pressure of undesirable plant species

* Control of undesirable vegetation for wildlife habitat improvement

To ensure the protection of threatened and endangered plants when apply-

ing Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate to rangeland:

® Federal agencies must follow NEPA regulations to ensure protection of
threatened and endangered plants.

e State agencies must work with the Fish and Wildlife Service or the
Service’s designated state conservation agency to ensure protection of
threatened and endangered plants.

¢ Other organizations or individuals must operate under a habitat conser-
vation plan if threatened or endangered plants are known to be present
on the land to be treated.

See the appropriate section(s) of this label for specific use directions for the

desired rangeland vegetation management objective.

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate must only be applied to a

given rangeland acre as specific weed problems arise. Long-term control

of undesirable weed species ultimately depends on the successful use of
land management practices that promote the growth and sustainability of
desirable rangeland plant species.



Rotational Crop Instructions

Rotational crops may be planted 12 months after applying Arsenal® herbicide
Applicators Concentrate at the specified pasture and rangeland rate.
Following 12 months after an Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate application and before planting any crop, a successful field
bioassay must be completed. The field bioassay consists of a test strip of
the intended rotational crop planted in the previously treated area in the
grass pasture/rangeland and grown to maturity. The test strip should
include low areas and knolls and include variations in soil type and pH with-
in the treated area. If no crop injury is evident in the test strip, the intended
rotational crop may be planted the following year.

Use of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate in accordance with
label directions is expected to result in normal growth of rotational crops in
most situations; however, various environmental and agronomic factors
make it impossible to eliminate all risks associated with the use of this prod-
uct and, therefore, rotational crop injury is always possible.

Aquatic Weed Control

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be applied for the con-
trol of floating and emergent undesirable vegetation (see the Aquatic Weeds
Controlled and the Terrestrial Weeds Controlled section) in or near bod-
ies of water that may be flowing, nonflowing, or transient. Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate may be applied to aquatic sites that include
lakes, rivers, streams, ponds, seeps, drainage ditches, canals, reservoirs,
swamps, bogs, marshes, estuaries, bays, brackish water, transitional areas
between terrestrial and aquatic sites, riparian sites, and seasonal wet areas.
See Product Use Precautions and Restrictions section of this label for
precautions, restrictions, and instructions on aquatic uses.

Read and observe the following directions if aquatic sites are present in
nonagricultural lands and are part of the intended treatment area.
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate must be applied to the
emergent foliage of the target vegetation and has little-to-no activity on
submerged aquatic vegetation. Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate concentrations resulting from direct application to water are
not expected to be of sufficient concentration nor duration to provide con-
trol of target vegetation. Application should be made in such a way as to
maximize spray interception by the target vegetation while minimizing the
amount of overspray that enters the water.

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate does not control plants that
are completely submerged or have a majority of their foliage under water.
Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be applied with sur-
face or helicopter application equipment in a minimum of 2 gallons of water
per acre. When applying by helicopter, follow directions under the Aerial
Application section of this label; otherwise, refer to the Ground
Application section when using surface equipment.

Applications to moving bodies of water should be made while traveling
upstream to prevent concentration of this herbicide in water. DO NOT
apply to bodies of water or portions of bodies of water where emergent
and/or floating weeds do not exist.

When application is to be made to target vegetation that covers a large per-
centage of the surface area of impounded water, treating the area in strips
may avoid oxygen depletion due to decaying vegetation. Oxygen depletion
may result in the suffocation of some sensitive aquatic organisms. If oxygen
depletion is a concern, treat no more than 1/2 of the surface area of the
water in a single operation and wait at least 10 to 14 days between treat-
ments. Begin treatment along the shore and proceed outward in bands to
allow aquatic organisms to move into untreated areas.

Avoid washoff of sprayed foliage by spray boat or recreational boat back-
wash for 1 hour after application.

Apply Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate at 1 to 3 pints per
acre depending on species present and weed density. DO NOT exceed
the maximum label rate of 3 pints per acre (1.5 Ibs ae/A) per year. Use the
higher labeled rates for heavy weed pressure. Consult the Aquatic Weeds
Controlled section and the Terrestrial Weeds Controlled section of this
label for specific rates.

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate may be applied as a draw-
down treatment in areas described above. Apply Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate to weeds after water has been drained and
allow 14 days before reintroduction of water.

Permitting - Consult local state fish and game agency and water control
authorities before applying this product to public water. Permits may be
required to treat such water.

Private waters - Applications may be made to private waters that are still,
such as ponds, lakes, and drainage ditches where there is minimal or no
outflow to public waters.

In New York state, a permit is required for application to private water bodies.

Weeds Controlled

Aquatic Weeds Controlled

Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate will control the following target species as specified in the Use Rates and Application Directions column
of the table. Rates are expressed in terms of product volume for broadcast applications and as a % solution for directed applications including spot treat-
ments. For % solution applications, DO NOT apply more than the equivalent of 3 pints of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate per acre.

Common Name Scientific Name

Use Rates and Application Directions

Floating

*Floating heart Nymphodes spp.

1 to 2 pints/A (0.25 to 0.50% solution) applied in 100 GPA water mix. Ensure

100% coverage of actively growing emergent foliage.

*Frogbit Limnobium spongia 0.5 to 1.0 pint/A (0.25% solution) applied in 100 GPA water mix. Ensure
100% coverage of actively growing emergent foliage.
*Spatterdock Nuphar luteum Apply a tank mix of 1 to 2 pints/A Arsenal herbicide Applicators

Concentrate + 4 to 6 pints/A glyphosate (0.25% Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate + 1.5% glyphosate) in 100 GPA water for best
control. Ensure 100% coverage of actively growing emergent foliage.

*Water hyacinth Eichhornia crassipes

0.5 to 1.0 pint/A (0.25% solution) applied in 100 GPA water to actively grow-

ing foliage.

*Water lettuce Pistia stratiotes

0.5 to 1.0 pint/A (0.25% solution) applied in 100 GPA water mix. Ensure

100% coverage of actively growing emergent foliage.

*Use not permitted in California unless otherwise directed by supplemental labeling.

12

(continued)



Aquatic Weeds Controlled (continued)

Common Name

Scientific Name

Use Rates and Application Directions

Emerged

*Alligatorweed

Alternanthera philoxeroides

0.5 to 2.0 pints/A (0.25% solution) applied in 100 GPA water mix. Ensure
100% coverage of actively growing emergent foliage.

*Arrowhead, duck-potato

Sagittaria spp.

0.5 to 1.0 pint/A (0.25% solution) applied in 100 GPA water mix. Ensure
100% coverage of actively growing emergent foliage.

*Bacopa, lemon Bacopa spp. 0.5 to 1.0 pint/A (0.25% solution) applied in 100 GPA water mix. Ensure
100% coverage of actively growing emergent foliage.
*Parrot feather Myriophyllum aquaticum Must be foliage above water for sufficient Arsenal® herbicide Applicators

Concentrate uptake. Apply 1 to 2 pints/A to actively growing emergent foliage.

*Pennywort Hydrocotyle spp. 0.5 to 1.0 pint/A (0.25% solution) applied in 100 GPA water mix. Ensure
100% coverage of actively growing emergent foliage.

*Pickerelweed Pontederia cordata 1.0 to 1.5 pints/A (0.5% solution) applied in 100 GPA water mix. Ensure
100% coverage of actively growing emergent foliage.

*Taro, wild Colocasia esculentum 2 to 3 pints/A (0.75% solution) applied in 100 GPA with a high quality sticker
Dasheen adjuvant. Ensure good coverage of actively growing emergent foliage.
Elephant’s ear
Coco yam

*Water chestnut

Trappa natans

2 to 3 pints/A (0.75% solution) applied in 100 GPA with a high quality sticker
adjuvant. Ensure good coverage of actively growing emergent foliage.

*Water lily

Nymphaea odorata

1.0 to 1.5 pints/A (0.5% solution) applied in 100 GPA water mix. Ensure
100% coverage of actively growing emergent foliage.

*Water primrose

Ludwigia uruguayensis

2 to 3 pints/A (0.756% solution). Ensure 100% coverage of actively growing
emergent foliage.

Terrestrial/Marginal

*Soda apple, Aquatic
nightshade

Solanum tampicense

1 pint/A applied to foliage

*Bamboo, Japanese

Phyllostachys spp.

1.5 to 2.0 pints/A applied to the foliage when plant is actively growing; before
setting seedhead. More foliage will result in greater herbicide uptake, resulting
in greater root Kkill.

Beach, vitex

Vitex rotundifolia

2.5% solution + 1% MSO foliar spray. 8.5% solution stem injection (hack and
squirt)

Brazilian pepper
Christmasberry

Schinus terebinthifolius

1 to 2 pints/A applied to foliage

Cattail

Typha spp.

1 to 2 pints/A (0.5% solution) applied to actively growing green foliage after
full leaf elongation. Lower rates will control cattail in the North; higher rates
are needed in the South.

Chinese tallow tree

Sapium sebiferum

8 to 12 fl ozs/A applied to foliage

Cogongrass

Imperata cylindrica

Burn foliage, till area; then fall-spray 1 quart/A Arsenal herbicide
Applicators Concentrate + MSO applied to new growth.

Cordgrass, prairie

Spartina spp.

2 to 3 pints/A applied to actively growing foliage

*Cutgrass

Zizaniopsis miliacea

2 to 3 pints/A applied to actively growing foliage

*Elephant grass
Napier grass

Pennisetum purpureum

1.5 pints/A applied to actively growing foliage

*Flowering rush

Butomus umbellatus L.

1.0 to 1.5 pints/A applied to actively growing foliage

Giant reed
Wild cane

Arundo donax

2 to 3 pints/A applied in spring to actively growing foliage

*Use not permitted in California unless otherwise directed by supplemental labeling.

(continued)
13



Aquatic Weeds Controlled (continued)

Common Name

Scientific Name

Use Rates and Application Directions

Terrestrial/Marginal (continued)

*Golden bamboo

Phyllostachys aurea

1.5 to 2.0 pints/A applied to foliage when plant is actively growing; before
setting seedhead. More foliage will result in greater herbicide uptake,
resulting in greater root kill.

Junglerice

Echinochloa colonum

1.5 to0 2.0 pints/A applied to actively growing foliage

Knapweed

Centaurea spp.

Russian knapweed: 1.0 to 1.5 pints + 1 quart/A MSO fall-applied after
senescence begins

Knotweed, Japanese

Polygonum cuspidatum
Fallopia japonica

1.5 to 2.0 pints/A applied postemergence to actively growing foliage

Melaleuca
Paperbark tree

Melaleuca quinquenervia

For established stands, apply 3 pints/A Arsenal® herbicide Applicators
Concentrate + 6 pints/A glyphosate + spray adjuvant. For best results, use
4 quarts/A methylated seed oil as an adjuvant.

For ground foliar application, uniformly apply to ensure 100% coverage.
For broadcast foliar control, apply aerially in a minimum of 2 passes at 10
gallons/A applied cross treatment.

For spot treatment, use a 12.5% Arsenal herbicide Applicators
Concentrate + 25% solution of glyphosate + 1.25% MSO in water applied
as a frill or stump treatment.

*Nutgrass Cyperus rotundus 1 pint Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate + 1 quart/A MSO

Kil'p’opu applied early postemergence

*Nutsedge Cyperus spp. 1.0 to 1.5 pints postemergence to foliage or preemergence incorporated,
nonincorporated, preemergence applications will not control.

Phragmites Phragmites australis 2 to 3 pints/A applied to actively growing green foliage after full leaf elongation.

Common reed

Ensure 100% coverage. If stand has a substantial amount of old stem tissue,
mow or burn, allow to regrow to approximately 5 feet tall before treatment. Lower
rates will control phragmites in the North; higher rates are needed in the South.

*Poison hemlock

Conium maculatum

1 pint Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate + 1 quart/A MSO
applied preemergence to early postemergence to rosette prior to flowering

Purple loosestrife

Lythrum salicaria

0.5 pint/A applied to actively growing foliage

Reed canarygrass

Phalaris arundinacea

1.5 to 2.0 pints/A applied to actively growing foliage

Rose, swamp

Rosa palustris

1.0 to 1.5 pints/A applied to actively growing foliage

Russian olive Elaeagnus angustifolia 1 to 2 pints/A or a 0.5% solution applied to foliage

Saltcedar Tamarix spp. Aerial apply 1 quart Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate + 0.25%

Tamarisk v/v NIS to actively growing foliage during flowering. For spot spraying, use
0.5% solution of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate + 0.25% v/v
NIS and spray to wet foliage. After application, wait at least 2 years before
disturbing treated saltcedar. Earlier disturbance can reduce overall control.

Smartweed Polygonum spp. 1 pint/A applied early postemergence

Sumac Rhus spp. 1.0 to 1.5 pints/A applied to foliage

Swamp morningglory
Water spinach
Kangkong

Ipomoea aquatica

0.5 to 1.0 pint/A Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate + 1 quart/A
MSO applied early postemergence

Torpedo grass

Panicum repens

2 pints/A (0.50 to 0.75% solution); ensure good coverage to actively growing
foliage

*White top Cardaria draba 0.5 to 1.0 pint/A applied in spring to foliage during flowering
Hoary cress
Willow Salix spp. 1.0 to 1.5 pints/A Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate applied to

actively growing foliage. Ensure good coverage

*Use not permitted in California unless otherwise directed by supplemental labeling.

14



Terrestrial Weed Control

Grass Weeds (continued)

Growth
In terrestrial sites, Arsenal® herbicide Applicators Concentrate will pro- Common Name Scientific Name Habit?
vide preemergence or postemergence control with residual control of the B
following target vegetation species at the rates listed. Residual control Apply 1'5‘t° 2.0 pts/A .
refers to control of newly germinating seedlings in both annuals and peren- ~ Barnyardgrass Echinochloa crus-galli A
nials. In general, annugl vyeeds may be controlled py_ preemerg_ence or Beardgrass Andropogon spp. P
postemergence appllcaﬁlons qf Arsenal herbllmde App S Bluegrass, annual Poa annua A
Concentrate. For established biennials and perennials, postemergence - - :
applications of Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate will provide Bulrush® Scirpus validus P
the best control. Cogongrass Imperata cylindrica P
The _rates sh_o_vm below pertain to broadoas@ applica_ti_o_ns and indicate the Cheat Bromus secalinus A
relative sensitivity of vthese weeds. The relative sepsnwny should be refer- Crabgrass Digitaria spp. A
enced when preparing low-volume spray solutions (see Low-volume _ -
Foliar Application section of Ground Application); low-volume applica- ~ Crowfootgrass Dactyloctenium aegyptium A
tions may provide control of the target species with less Arsenal Fall panicum Panicum dichotomiflorum A
herbicide Applicators Concentrate Qef acre th'an is shown for the Goosegrass Fleusine indica A
broadcast treatments. Use Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate -
only in accordance with the specific use directions on this label and the  !tchgrass Rottboellia exaltata A
leaflet label. Lovegrass* Eragrostis spp. P
The relative sensitivity of the species listed following can also be used to Maidencane® Panicum hemitomon A
deter_mlne the relative risk of causing nontarget_ plant injury if any of the Panicum, browntop Panicur fasciculatum A
species listed following are considered to be desirable within the area to be 8 :
treated. Panicum, Texas Panicum texanum A
Resistant Biotypes. Naturally occurring biotypes (a plant within a given ~ Prairie threeawn Aristida oligantha P
species that has a slightly different but distinct genetic makeup from other Sandbur, field Cenchrus incertus A
plants of the same species) of some weeds listed on this label may not be anal Brachiaria olatyohvi A
effectively controlled. If naturally occurring, resistant biotypes are present in S"?”a grass rachiaria platyphyla
an area, Arsenal herbicide Applicators Concentrate should be tank  Wild barley Hordeum spp. A
mixed or applied sequentially with an appropriate registered herbicide hav- Woolly cupgrass Eriochloa villosa A
ing a different mode of action to ensure control.
Apply 2 to 3 pts/A’
Grass Weeds Growih Bahiagrass Paspalum notatum P

Common Name Scientific Name Habit? Bermudagrass®* Cynodon dactylon P

Apply 1.0 to 1.5 pts/A’ Big bluestem Andropogon gerardii P
Annual bluegrass Poa annua A Dallisgrass Paspalum dilatatum P
Broadleaf signalgrass Brachiaria platyphylia A Feathertop Pennisetum villosum P
Canada bluegrass Poa compressa P Guineagrass Panicum maximum P
Downy brome Bromus tectorum A Saltgrass® Distichlis stricta P
Fescue Festuca spp. AP Sand dropseed Sporobolus cryptandrus P
Foxtail Setaria spp. A Sprangletop Leptochloa spp. A
Italian ryegrass Lolium multiflorum A Timothy Phleum pratense P
Johnsongrass® Sorghum halepense =) Wirestem muhly Muhlenbergia frondosa P
Kentucky bluegrass Poa pratensis P "Use higher rates where heavy or well-established infestations occur.
Naon G Bermi = 2Growth Habit: A = Annual, B = Biennial, P = Perennial

apier grass ennisetum purpureum =Use a minimum of 75 GPA.
Orchardgrass Dactylis glomerata P “Use higher labeled rates.
Paragrass Brachiaria mutica P °Use not permitted in California unless otherwise directed by
Quackgrass Agropyron repens P supplemental labeling.
Sandbur Cenchrus spp. A
Smooth brome Bromus inermis P
Vaseygrass Paspalum urvillei P
Wild oats Avena fatua A
Witchgrass Panicum capillare A
(continued)

15



Broadleaf Weeds

Broadleaf Weeds (continued)

Growth Growth
Common Name Scientific Name Habit? Common Name Scientific Name Habit?
Apply 1.0 to 1.5 pts/A’ Apply 1.5 to 2.0 pts/A’ (continued)

Burdock Arctium spp. B Cocklebur Xanthium strumarium A
Carolina geranium Geranium carolinianum A Cudweed Gnaphalium spp. A
Carpetweed Mollugo verticillata A Desert camelthorn Alhagi pseudalhagi P
Clover Trifolium spp. AP Dock Rumex spp. P
Common chickweed Stellaria media A Fiddleneck Amsinckia intermedia A
Common ragweed Ambrosia artemisiifolia A Goldenrod Solidago spp. P
Dandelion Taraxacum officinale P Henbit Lamium amplexicaule A
Dogfennel Eupatorium capillifolium A Knotweed, prostrate Polygonum aviculare AP
Filaree Erodium spp. A Pokeweed Phytolacca americana P
Fleabane Erigeron spp. A Purslane Portulaca spp. A
Hoary vervain Verbena stricta P Pusley, Florida Richardia scabra A
Indian mustard Brassica juncea A Rocket, London Sisymbrium irio A
Kochia Kochia scoparia A Rush skeletonweed* Chondrilla juncea B
Lambsquarters Chenopodium album A Saltbush Atriplex spp. A
Lespedeza® Lespedeza spp. P Shepherdspurse Capsella bursa-pastoris A
Miner’s lettuce Montia perfoliata A Spurge, annual Euphorbia spp. A
Mullein Verbascum spp. B Stinging nettle* Urtica dioica P
Nettleleaf goosefoot Chenopodium murale A Velvetleaf Abutilon theophrasti A
Oxeye daisy Chrysanthemum Yellow starthistle Centaurea solstitialis A

leucanthemum P
Pepperweed Lepidium spp. A Apply 2 to 3 pts/A’
Pigweed Amaranthus spp. A Arrowwood Pluchea sericea A
Puncturevine Tribulus terrestris A Canada thistle Cirsium arvense P
Russian thistle Salsola kali A Giant ragweed Ambrosia trifida A
Smartweed Polygonum spp. AP Gray rabbitbrush Chrysothamnus nauseosus P
Sorrell Rumex spp. P Little mallow Malva parviflora B
Sunflower Helianthus spp. A Milkweed Asclepias spp. P
Sweet clover Melilotus spp. AB Primrose Oenothera kunthiana P
Tansymustard Descurainia pinnata A Silverleaf nightshade Solanum elaeagnifolium P
Western ragweed Ambrosia psilostachya P Sowthistle Sonchus spp. A
Wild carrot Daucus carota B Texas thistle Cirsium texanum P
Wild lettuce Lactuca spp. AB Use higher rates where heavy or well-established infestations occur.
Wild parsnip Pastinaca sativa B ?Growth Habit: A = Annual, B = Biennial, P = Perennial
Wild turnip Brassica campestris B sUse not permitted jn California unless otherwise directed by

n supplemental labeling.
Woollyleaf bursage Franseria tomentosa P “For best resullts, early postemergence applications are required.
Yellow woodsorrel Oxalis stricta P
Apply 1.5 to 2.0 pts/A’
Broom snakeweed* Gutierrezia sarothrae P
Bull thistle Cirsium vulgare B
Burclover Medicago spp. A
Chickweed, mouseear Cerastium vulgatum A
Clover, hop Trifolium procumbens A
(continued)



Vines and Brambles

Brush Species (continued)

Growth N Growth
Common Name Scientific Name Habit? Common Name Scientific Name Habit?
Apply 0.5 pt/A Apply 2 to 3 pts/A’ (continued)
Field bindweed Convolvulus arvensis P Boxelder Acer negundo P
Hedge bindweed Calystegia sepium A Ceanothis Ceanothis spp. P
, Cherry** Prunus spp. P
_ Apply 1.0 to 1.5 pts/A Chinaberry Melia azedarach P
Wild buckwheat Polygonum convolvulus P Chinguapin Castanopsis chrysophyla =
Apply 1.5 to 2.0 pts/A’ Cottonwood Populus trichocarpa
- p P. deltoides P
Greenbriar Smilax spp. P = - 5
Honeysuckle® Lonicera spp. P Cypress axodium spp.

- Dogwood® Cornus spp. P
Morningglory Ipomoea spp. AP = T 5
Poison ivy Rhus radicans P Elm | Elmuls SPP- 5
Redvine Brunnichia cirrhosa P Hucar{ptus cucay pLus Spp- 5
Wild rose® Rosa spp. P ?Wt on rataegus spp.

including: Hickory® Carya spp. P
Multiflora rose Rosa multiflora P Honeylocust® Gleditsia triacanthos P
Macartney rose Rosa bracteata P Huckieberry Gaylussacia spp. )

Apply 2 to 3 pts/A’ Ly_omla op.
- - including:
Trumpetcreeper Campsis radicans P Fetterbush Lyonia lucida
Virginia creeper Parthenocissus quinquefolia P Staggerbush Lyonia mariana P
Wild grape Vitis spp. P Madrone Arbutus menziesii P
"Use higher rate where heavy or well-established infestations occur. Maple Acer spp. P
2Growt‘h Habit: A = Annual, B = Biennial, P = Perennial Melaleuca Melaleuca quinquenervia =)
“Use higher labeled rates.
; Mulberry® " Morus spp. P
Brush SpeCIes Oak® Quercus spp. P
Growth - — - ——
Common Name Scientific Name Habit? Persimmon Diospyros virginiana P
Apply 1 to 2 pts/A’ Pine>® Pinus spp. P
Brazilian peppertree Schinus terebinthifolius P Poison oak Rhus diversiloba P
Chinese tallow tree Sapium sebiferum P Poplar Populus spp. P
Popcorn tree Privet Ligustrum vulgare P
Russian olive Elaeagnus angustifolia P Red alder Alnus rubra P
Sumac Rhus spp. P Red maple Acer rubrum P
Willow Salix spp. P Saltcedar Tamarix pentandra P
Sassafras Sassafras albidum P
1
Apply 2o 3 pts/A Sourwood* Oxydendrum arboreum P
Alder‘ Alnus spp. — P Sweetgum Liquidambar styracifiua P
American beech Fagus grandifolia P Sycamore Platanus ocoidentalis =
~ -
Ash Fraxinus spp. P Tanoak® Lithocarpus densiflorus P
Aspen . Populus spp. P Titi® Cyrilla racemiflora P
Autumn olive Elaeag nus u.m..be//ata P Tree of heaven Ailanthus altissima P
Bald cypress Taxodium distichum P Vacainium spp.
Bigleaf maple Acer macrophyllum P including:
Birch® Betula spp. P Blueberry Vaccinium spp.
Black gum* Nyssa sylvatica ) Sparkleberry Vaccinium arboreum P
—— — -
Black locust® Robinia pseudoacacia P Water willow JL."SUC’a amer10§n§ P
Black oak Quercus kelloggii ) Yellow poplar® Liriodendron tulipifera P
(continued) (continued)

17



Brush Species (continued)

"Use the higher rates where heavy or well-established infestations occur.

2Growth Habit: A = Annual, B = Biennial, P = Perennial

*Use higher labeled rates.

“Best control with applications prior to formation of fall leaf color

°Tank mix with glyphosate or triclopyr

STank mix with glyphosate

"Degree of control may be species dependent.

For water oak (Quercus nigra), laurel oak (Q. laurifloria), willow oak
(Q. phellos) and live oak (Q. virginiana), use higher labeled rates.

2 Suppression only

“Use not permitted in California unless otherwise directed by sup-
plemental labeling.



Conditions of Sale and Warranty

The Directions For Use of this product reflect the opinion of experts
based on field use and tests. The directions are believed to be reliable
and must be followed carefully. However, it is impossible to eliminate all
risks inherently associated with the use of this product. Crop injury,
ineffectiveness or other unintended consequences may result because
of such factors as weather conditions, presence of other materials, or
use of the product in a manner inconsistent with its labeling, all of which
are beyond the control of BASF CORPORATION (“BASF”) or the Seller.
To the extent consistent with applicable law, all such risks shall be
assumed by the Buyer.

BASF warrants that this product conforms to the chemical description on
the label and is reasonably fit for the purposes referred to in the
Directions For Use, subject to the inherent risks, referred to above.
TO THE EXTENT CONSISTENT WITH APPLICABLE LAW, BASF
MAKES NO OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY OF
FITNESS OR MERCHANTABILITY OR ANY OTHER EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED WARRANTY.

TO THE EXTENT CONSISTENT WITH APPLICABLE LAW,
BUYER’S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY AND BASF'S EXCLUSIVE
LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT, NEGLIGENCE,
STRICT LIABILITY, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE LIMITED TO
REPAYMENT OF THE PURCHASE PRICE OF THE PRODUCT.

TO THE EXTENT CONSISTENT WITH APPLICABLE LAW, BASF
AND THE SELLER DISCLAIM ANY LIABILITY FOR
CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, SPECIAL OR INDIRECT
DAMAGES RESULTING FROM THE USE OR HANDLING OF THIS
PRODUCT.

BASF and the Seller offer this product, and the Buyer and User accept
it, subject to the foregoing Conditions of Sale and Warranty which
may be varied only by agreement in writing signed by a duly authorized
representative of BASF. 1108

Arsenal, Overdrive, and Pendulum are registered trademarks of BASF.
AquacCap is a trademark of BASF.
Accord and Garlon are registered trademarks of Dow AgroSciences LLC.

Campaign and Roundup are registered trademarks of Monsanto
Technology LLC.

Embark is a registered trademark of PBl/Gordon Corporation.

Escort and Krenite are registered trademarks of E.I. duPont de
Nemours and Company.

Microfoil is a trademark of Rhone Poulenc Ag Company.
Thru-Valve is a trademark of Waldrum Specialties.

© 2017 BASF Corporation
Al rights reserved.

000241-00299.20170810.NVA 2017-04-104-0177
Based on: NVA 2017-04-104-0175

Supersedes: NVA 2011-04-104-0062

BASF Corporation

26 Davis Drive
Research Triangle Park, NC 27709

1~ BASF

We create chemistry






Arsenal
Herbicide
Applicators Concentrate

For the control of undesirable vegetation growing within
specified aquatic sites, forestry sites, pasture/rangeland, and
nonagricultural lands; and for the establishment and
maintenance of wildlife openings, release of unimproved
Bermudagrass and Bahiagrass, bareground weed control, and
for use under certain paved surfaces

Active Ingredient:

isopropylamine salt of imazapyr:
(2-[4,5-dihydro-4-methyl-4-(1-methylethyl)-5-
oxo-1H-imidazol-2-yl]-3-pyridinecarboxylic acid)*..............
Other Ingredients:.. .

*Equivalent to 43.3% 2-[4,5-dihydro-4-methyl-4-(1-methylethyl)-
5-ox0-1H-imidazol-2-yl]-3-pyridinecarboxylic acid or 4 pounds
acid per gallon

EPA Reg. No. 241-299 EPA Est. No. 241-PR-002

KEEP OUT OF REACH OF CHILDREN
CAUTION/PRECAUCION

Si usted no entiende la etiqueta, busque a alguien para que se la
explique a usted en detalle. (If you do not understand the label,
find someone to explain it to you in detail.)

See attached booklet for complete Precautionary Statements,
Directions For Use, Conditions of Sale and Warranty, and
state-specific crop and/or use site restrictions.

FIRST AID: If swallowed: Call a poison control center or doctor
immediately for treatment advice. Have person sip a glass of water
if able to swallow. DO NOT induce vomiting unless told to by a poi-
son control center or doctor. DO NOT give anything to an uncon-
scious person. If on skin or clothing: Take off contaminated
clothing. Rinse skin immediately with plenty of water for 15 to 20
minutes. Call a poison control center or doctor for treatment advice.
If inhaled: Move person to fresh air. If person is not breathing, call
911 or an ambulance; then give artificial respiration, preferably by
mouth to mouth, if possible. Call a poison control center or doctor
for further treatment advice. If in eyes: Hold eyes open and rinse
slowly and gently with water for 15 to 20 minutes. Remove contact

BASF Corporation
26 Davis Drive
Research Triangle Park, NC 27709

BASF

We create chemistry

Net Contents: 2.5 gallons

lenses, if present, after first 5 minutes; then continue rinsing eyes.
Call a poison control center or doctor for treatment advice. HOTLINE
NUMBER: Have the product container or label with you when calling
a poison control center or doctor or going for treatment. In case of
an emergency endangering life or property involving this product,
call BASF Corporation for emergency medical treatment information,
day or night 1-800-832-HELP (4357).

Precautionary Statements
Hazards to Humans and Domestic Animals

CAUTION. Harmful if swallowed. Avoid contact with skin, eyes, or
clothing. Avoid breathing spray mist.

Physical and Chemical Hazards

Spray solutions of Arsenal® herbicide Applicators Concentrate
must be mixed, stored and applied only in stainless steel, fiberglass,
plastic and plastic-lined steel containers.

Thoroughly clean application equipment, including landing gear, im-
mediately after use of this product. Prolonged exposure of this
product to uncoated steel (except stainless steel) surfaces may re-
sult in corrosion and failure of the exposed part. The maintenance
of an organic coating (paint) may prevent corrosion.

Environmental Hazards

This product is toxic to plants. Drift and runoff may be hazardous
to plants in water adjacent to treated areas. DO NOT apply to water
except as specified in this label. Treatment of aquatic weeds may
result in oxygen depletion or loss due to decomposition of dead
plants. This oxygen loss may cause the suffocation of some aquatic
organisms. DO NOT treat more than 1/2 of the surface area of the
water in a single operation and wait at least 10 to 14 days between
treatments. Begin treatment along the shore and proceed outward
in bands to allow aquatic organisms to move into untreated areas.
DO NOT contaminate water when disposing of equipment wash-
waters or rinsate.

This pesticide is toxic to vascular plants and must be used strictly
in accordance with the drift precautions on the label.

STORAGE AND DISPOSAL

DO NOT contaminate water, food or feed by storage or disposal.

Pesticide Storage
DO NOT store below 10° F.

Pesticide Disposal
Wastes resulting from the use of this product must be disposed of
on-site or at an approved waste disposal facility.

Container Handling

Nonrefillable Container. DO NOT reuse or refill this container.
Triple rinse or pressure rinse container (or equivalent) promptly after
emptying; then offer for recycling, if available, or reconditioning, if
appropriate, or puncture and dispose of in a sanitary landfill, or by
incineration, or by other procedures approved by state and local
authorities.

See attached booklet for complete container handling directions in-
cluding triple rinsing and pressure rinsing instructions.

81045263 NVA 2017-05-104-0198
Product of U.S.A.

N




BASF

We create chemistry

Safety Data Sheet
ARSENAL HERBICIDE APPL. CONC.

Revision date : 2014/12/23 Page: 1/11
Version: 3.0 (30497129/SDS_CPA_US/EN)

1. Identification

Product identifier used on the label

ARSENAL HERBICIDE APPL. CONC.

Recommended use of the chemical and restriction on use
Recommended use*: herbicide

* The “Recommended use” identified for this product is provided solely to comply with a US Federal requirement and is not
part of the seller's published specification. The terms of this Safety Data Sheet (SDS) do not create or infer any warranty,
express or implied, including by incorporation into or reference in the seller's sales agreement.

Details of the supplier of the safety data sheet

Company:
BASF CORPORATION

100 Park Avenue
Florham Park, NJ 07932, USA

Telephone: +1 973 245-6000

Emergency telephone number

CHEMTREC: 1-800-424-9300
BASF HOTLINE: 1-800-832-HELP (4357)

Other means of identification

Substance number: 57487

EPA Register number: 241-299

Molecular formula: C(13) H(15) N(3) O(3). C(3) H(9) N
Chemical family: imidazole derivative

Synonyms: Isopropylamine salt of imazapyr

2. Hazards Identification

According to Regulation 2012 OSHA Hazard Communication Standard; 29 CFR Part 1910.1200

Classification of the product

Aquatic Acute 1 Hazardous to the aquatic environment - acute

Aquatic Chronic 1 Hazardous to the aquatic environment - chronic

Label elements



Safety Data Sheet
ARSENAL HERBICIDE APPL. CONC.

Revision date : 2014/12/23 Page: 2/11
Version: 3.0 (30497129/SDS CPA US/EN)

The product does not require a hazard warning label in accordance with GHS criteria.

Hazards not otherwise classified

Labeling of special preparations (GHS):

The following percentage of the mixture consists of components(s) with unknown hazards regarding
the acute toxicity: 0 - 1 % dermal

The following percentage of the mixture consists of components(s) with unknown hazards regarding
the acute toxicity: O - 1 % oral

The following percentage of the mixture consists of components(s) with unknown hazards regarding
the acute toxicity: 0 - 1 % Inhalation - vapour

The following percentage of the mixture consists of components(s) with unknown hazards regarding
the acute toxicity: O - 1 % Inhalation - mist

According to Regulation 1994 OSHA Hazard Communication Standard; 29 CFR Part 1910.1200

Emergency overview

CAUTION:

KEEP OUT OF REACH OF CHILDREN.
Avoid contact with the skin, eyes and clothing.
Avoid inhalation of mists/vapours.

3. Composition / Information on Ingredients

According to Regulation 2012 OSHA Hazard Communication Standard; 29 CFR Part 1910.1200

CAS Number Content (W/W) Chemical name

81510-83-0 53.1% Isopropylamine salt of imazapyr
64-19-7 01- 10 % Acetic acid

75-31-0 5.0- 10.0 % isopropylamine

According to Requlation 1994 OSHA Hazard Communication Standard; 29 CFR Part 1910.1200

CAS Number Content (W/W) Chemical name
81510-83-0 53.1% Isopropylamine salt of imazapyr
46.9 % Proprietary ingredients

4. First-Aid Measures
Description of first aid measures

General advice:
Remove contaminated clothing.

If inhaled:
Keep patient calm, remove to fresh air.

If on skin:
Wash thoroughly with soap and water.

If in eyes:
Wash affected eyes for at least 15 minutes under running water with eyelids held open.



Safety Data Sheet
ARSENAL HERBICIDE APPL. CONC.

Revision date : 2014/12/23 Page: 3/11
Version: 3.0 (30497129/SDS CPA US/EN)
If swallowed:

Rinse mouth and then drink plenty of water.

Most important symptoms and effects, both acute and delayed
Symptoms: No significant reaction of the human body to the product known.
Indication of any immediate medical attention and special treatment needed

Note to physician

Antidote: No known specific antidote.
Treatment: Treat symptomatically.
Treatment: Symptomatic treatment (decontamination, vital functions).

5. Fire-Fighting Measures

Extinguishing media

Suitable extinguishing media:
foam, dry powder, carbon dioxide, water spray

Special hazards arising from the substance or mixture

Hazards during fire-fighting:

carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide, nitrogen oxide, nitrogen dioxide, Hydrocarbons,

If product is heated above decomposition temperature, toxic vapours will be released. The
substances/groups of substances mentioned can be released if the product is involved in a fire.

Advice for fire-fighters
Protective equipment for fire-fighting:
Firefighters should be equipped with self-contained breathing apparatus and turn-out gear.

Further information:
Evacuate area of all unnecessary personnel. Contain contaminated water/firefighting water. Do not
allow to enter drains or waterways.

6. Accidental release measures

Personal precautions, protective equipment and emergency procedures

Take appropriate protective measures. Clear area. Shut off source of leak only under safe
conditions. Extinguish sources of ignition nearby and downwind. Ensure adequate ventilation. Wear
suitable personal protective clothing and equipment.

Environmental precautions
Do not discharge into the subsaoil/soil. Do not discharge into drains/surface waters/groundwater.

Methods and material for containment and cleaning up

Dike spillage. Pick up with suitable absorbent material. Place into suitable containers for reuse or
disposal in a licensed facility. Spilled substance/product should be recovered and applied according
to label rates whenever possible. If application of spilled substance/product is not possible, then
spills should be contained, solidified, and placed in suitable containers for disposal. After
decontamination, spill area can be washed with water. Collect wash water for approved disposal.



Safety Data Sheet
ARSENAL HERBICIDE APPL. CONC.

Revision date : 2014/12/23 Page: 4/11
Version: 3.0 (30497129/SDS CPA US/EN)

7. Handling and Storage

Precautions for safe handling

RECOMMENDATIONS ARE FOR MANUFACTURING, COMMERCIAL BLENDING, AND
PACKAGING WORKERS. PESTICIDE APPLICATORS & WORKERS must refer to the Product
Label and Directions for Use attached to the product for Agricultural Use Requirements in
accordance with the EPA Worker Protection Standard 40 CFR part 170. Ensure adequate
ventilation. Provide good ventilation of working area (local exhaust ventilation if necessary). Keep

away from sources of ignition - No smoking. Keep container tightly sealed. Protect contents from the

effects of light. Protect against heat. Protect from air. Handle and open container with care. Do not
open until ready to use. Once container is opened, content should be used as soon as possible.

Avoid aerosol formation. Avoid dust formation. Provide means for controlling leaks and spills. Do not
return residues to the storage containers. Follow label warnings even after container is emptied. The
substance/ product may be handled only by appropriately trained personnel. Avoid all direct contact

with the substance/product. Avoid contact with the skin, eyes and clothing. Avoid inhalation of
dusts/mists/vapours. Wear suitable personal protective clothing and equipment.

Protection against fire and explosion:
The relevant fire protection measures should be noted. Fire extinguishers should be kept handy.
Avoid all sources of ignition: heat, sparks, open flame. Sources of ignition should be kept well clear.

Avoid extreme heat. Keep away from oxidizable substances. Electrical equipment should conform to

national electric code. Ground all transfer equipment properly to prevent electrostatic discharge.
Electrostatic discharge may cause ignition.

Conditions for safe storage, including any incompatibilities
Segregate from incompatible substances. Segregate from foods and animal feeds. Segregate from
textiles and similar materials.

Further information on storage conditions: Keep only in the original container in a cool, dry, well-

ventilated place away from ignition sources, heat or flame. Protect containers from physical damage.

Protect against contamination. The authority permits and storage regulations must be observed.

8. Exposure Controls/Personal Protection

Users of a pesticidal product should refer to the product label for personal protective
equipment requirements.

Components with occupational exposure limits
isopropylamine OSHA PEL PEL 5ppm 12 mg/m3 ; STEL value 10 ppm
24 mg/m3 ; TWA value 5ppm 12 mg/m3 ;
ACGIHTLV  TWAvalue 5 ppm ; STEL value 10 ppm ;

Advice on system design:
Whenever possible, engineering controls should be used to minimize the need for personal
protective equipment.

Personal protective equipment

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR MANUFACTURING, COMMERCIAL BLENDING, AND PACKAGING

WORKERS:

Respiratory protection:
Wear respiratory protection if ventilation is inadequate. Wear a NIOSH-certified (or equivalent)
TC23C Chemical/Mechanical type filter system to remove a combination of particles, gas and



Safety Data Sheet
ARSENAL HERBICIDE APPL. CONC.

Revision date : 2014/12/23 Page: 5/11
Version: 3.0 (30497129/SDS CPA US/EN)

vapours. For situations where the airborne concentrations may exceed the level for which an air
purifying respirator is effective, or where the levels are unknown or Immediately Dangerous to Life or
Health (IDLH), use NIOSH-certified full facepiece pressure demand self-contained breathing
apparatus (SCBA) or a full facepiece pressure demand supplied-air respirator (SAR) with escape
provisions.

Hand protection:
Chemical resistant protective gloves, Protective glove selection must be based on the user's
assessment of the workplace hazards.

Eye protection:
Safety glasses with side-shields. Tightly fitting safety goggles (chemical goggles). Wear face shield if
splashing hazard exists.

Body protection:
Body protection must be chosen depending on activity and possible exposure, e.g. head protection,
apron, protective boots, chemical-protection suit.

General safety and hygiene measures:

Wear long sleeved work shirt and long work pants in addition to other stated personal protective
equipment. Work place should be equipped with a shower and an eye wash. Handle in accordance
with good industrial hygiene and safety practice. Personal protective equipment should be
decontaminated prior to reuse. Gloves must be inspected regularly and prior to each use. Replace if
necessary (e.g. pinhole leaks). Take off immediately all contaminated clothing. Store work clothing
separately. Hands and/or face should be washed before breaks and at the end of the shift. No
eating, drinking, smoking or tobacco use at the place of work. Keep away from food, drink and
animal feeding stuffs.

9. Physical and Chemical Properties

Form: liquid

Odour: strong, ammonia-like

Odour threshold: Not determined due to potential health
hazard by inhalation.

Colour: green

pH value: approx.5-7 (1 %(m), 20 °C)

Freezing point: approx. 0 °C (1,013.3 hPa) Information applies to the
solvent.

Boiling point: approx. 100 °C (1,013.3 hPa) Information applies to
the solvent.

Flash point: not applicable Aqueous preparation

Flammability: not applicable

Lower explosion limit: As a result of our experience with this

product and our knowledge of its
composition we do not expect any hazard
as long as the product is used
appropriately and in accordance with the
intended use.

Upper explosion limit: As a result of our experience with this
product and our knowledge of its
composition we do not expect any hazard
as long as the product is used
appropriately and in accordance with the
intended use.

Autoignition: not applicable Information applies to the
solvent.
Vapour pressure: approx. 23.4 hPa (20°C) Information applies to the

solvent.



Safety Data Sheet
ARSENAL HERBICIDE APPL. CONC.

Revision date : 2014/12/23 Page: 6/11
Version: 3.0 (30497129/SDS CPA US/EN)

Density: approx. 1.11 (20 °C)

g/cm3

Vapour density: not applicable

Partitioning coefficient n- not applicable

octanol/water (log Pow):

Thermal decomposition: carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide, nitrogen oxide, nitrogen

dioxide, Hydrocarbons

Stable at ambient temperature. If product is heated above
decomposition temperature toxic vapours may be released. If
product is heated above decomposition temperature hazardous
fumes may be released.

Viscosity, dynamic: approx. 46.5 (20°C)
mPa.s
Solubility in water: readily soluble
Molar mass: 320.4 g/mol
Evaporation rate: not applicable
Other Information: If necessary, information on other physical and chemical

parameters is indicated in this section.

10. Stability and Reactivity

Reactivity
No hazardous reactions if stored and handled as prescribed/indicated.

Oxidizing properties:
not fire-propagating
Not an oxidizer.

Chemical stability
The product is stable if stored and handled as prescribed/indicated.

Possibility of hazardous reactions

The product is chemically stable.

Hazardous polymerization will not occur. No hazardous reactions if stored and handled as
prescribed/indicated.

Conditions to avoid

Avoid all sources of ignition: heat, sparks, open flame. Avoid prolonged storage. Avoid electro-static
discharge. Avoid contamination. Avoid prolonged exposure to extreme heat. Avoid extreme
temperatures.

Incompatible materials
oxidizing agents, strong alkalies

Hazardous decomposition products

Decomposition products:

Hazardous decomposition products: No hazardous decomposition products if stored and handled as
prescribed/indicated., Prolonged thermal loading can result in products of degradation being given
off.

Thermal decomposition:

Possible thermal decomposition products:

carbon monoxide, carbon dioxide, nitrogen oxide, nitrogen dioxide, Hydrocarbons

Stable at ambient temperature. If product is heated above decomposition temperature toxic vapours
may be released. If product is heated above decomposition temperature hazardous fumes may be
released.



Safety Data Sheet
ARSENAL HERBICIDE APPL. CONC.

Revision date : 2014/12/23 Page: 7/11
Version: 3.0 (30497129/SDS CPA US/EN)

11. Toxicological information

Primary routes of exposure

Routes of entry for solids and liquids are ingestion and inhalation, but may include eye or skin
contact. Routes of entry for gases include inhalation and eye contact. Skin contact may be a route
of entry for liquefied gases.

Acute Toxicity/Effects

Acute toxicity
Assessment of acute toxicity: Relatively nontoxic after single ingestion. Slightly toxic after short-term

skin contact. Relatively nontoxic after short-term inhalation.

Oral

Type of value: LD50
Species: rat

Value: > 5,000 mg/kg

Inhalation

Type of value: LC50

Species: rat (male/female)

Value: > 5.0 mg/l (OECD Guideline 403)
Exposure time: 4 h

An aerosol was tested.

No mortality was observed.

Dermal

Type of value: LD50
Species: rabbit
Value: > 5,000 mg/kg

Irritation / corrosion
Assessment of irritating effects: May cause slight but temporary irritation to the eyes. May cause
slight irritation to the skin.

Skin

Species: rabbit

Result: Slightly irritating.

Method: Primary skin irritation test

Eye
Species: rabbit
Result: non-irritant

Sensitization
Assessment of sensitization: Skin sensitizing effects were not observed in animal studies.

Buehler test

Species: guinea pig

Result: Skin sensitizing effects were not observed in animal studies.
Method: OECD Guideline 406

Chronic Toxicity/Effects

Repeated dose toxicity




Safety Data Sheet
ARSENAL HERBICIDE APPL. CONC.

Revision date : 2014/12/23 Page: 8/11
Version: 3.0 (30497129/SDS CPA US/EN)

Assessment of repeated dose toxicity: The product has not been tested. The statement has been
derived from the properties of the individual components. No substance-specific organtoxicity was
observed after repeated administration to animals.

Genetic toxicity
Assessment of mutagenicity: The product has not been tested. The statement has been derived from
the properties of the individual components. Mutagenicity tests revealed no genotoxic potential.

Carcinogenicity
Assessment of carcinogenicity: The product has not been tested. The statement has been derived

from the properties of the individual components. The results of various animal studies gave no
indication of a carcinogenic effect.

Reproductive toxicity

Assessment of reproduction toxicity: The product has not been tested. The statement has been
derived from the properties of the individual components. The results of animal studies gave no
indication of a fertility impairing effect.

Teratogenicity

Assessment of teratogenicity: The product has not been tested. The statement has been derived
from the properties of the individual components. Animal studies gave no indication of a
developmental toxic effect at doses that were not toxic to the parental animals.

Other Information
Misuse can be harmful to health.

Symptoms of Exposure

No significant reaction of the human body to the product known.

12.

Ecological Information

Toxicity

Aquatic toxicity

Assessment of aquatic toxicity:

There is a high probability that the product is not acutely harmful to fish. There is a high probability
that the product is not acutely harmful to aquatic invertebrates. Acutely harmful for aquatic plants.

Very toxic to aquatic organisms. May cause long-term adverse effects in the aquatic environment.
The product has not been tested. The statement has been derived from the properties of the
individual components.

Toxicity to fish

Information on: Imazapyr
LC50 (96 h) >100PPM, Oncorhynchus mykiss (static)
LC50 (96 h) >100 ppm, Lepomis macrochirus (static)

Aquatic invertebrates

Information on: Imazapyr
EC50 (24 h) > 100 ppm, Daphnia magna




Safety Data Sheet
ARSENAL HERBICIDE APPL. CONC.

Revision date : 2014/12/23 Page: 9/11
Version: 3.0 (30497129/SDS CPA US/EN)

Aquatic plants

Information on: Imazapyr
EC50 (96 h) >1 ppm, Selenastrum capricornutum (static)
EC50 (14 d) 24, Lemna gibba

Assessment of terrestrial toxicity
With high probability not acutely harmful to terrestrial organisms.

Other terrestrial non-mammals

Information on: imazapyr

LC50, Anas platyrhynchos

With high probability not acutely harmful to terrestrial organisms.
LD50 > 100 ug/bee, Apis mellifera

With high probability not acutely harmful to terrestrial organisms.

Persistence and degradability

Assessment biodegradation and elimination (H20)

Information on: Imazapyr

Bioaccumulative potential

Assessment bioaccumulation potential
The product has not been tested. The statement has been derived from the properties of the
individual components.

Bioaccumulation potential

Information on: Imazapyr

Bioconcentration factor: < 1.0, Lepomis macrochirus
Does not accumulate in organisms.

Mobility in soil

Assessment transport between environmental compartments
The product has not been tested. The statement has been derived from the properties of the
individual components.

Information on: Imazapyr

The substance will not evaporate into the atmosphere from the water surface.
Following exposure to soil, the product trickles away and can - dependant on degradation - be
transported to deeper soil areas with larger water loads.

Additional information

Other ecotoxicological advice:
The ecological data given are those of the active ingredient. Do not release untreated into natural
waters.



Safety Data Sheet
ARSENAL HERBICIDE APPL. CONC.

Revision date : 2014/12/23
Version: 3.0

Page: 10/11
(30497129/SDS_CPA _US/EN)

13. Disposal considerations

Waste disposal of substance:

Pesticide wastes are regulated. Improper disposal of excess pesticide, spray mix or rinsate is a
violation of federal law. If pesticide wastes cannot be disposed of according to label instructions,
contact the State Pesticide or Environmental Control Agency or the Hazardous Waste representative
at the nearest EPA Regional Office for guidance.

Container disposal:

Rinse thoroughly at least three times (triple rinse) in accordance with EPA recommendations.
Consult state or local disposal authorities for approved alternative procedures such as container
recycling. Recommend crushing, puncturing or other means to prevent unauthorized use of used

containers.

RCRA:

This product is not regulated by RCRA.

14. Transport Information

Land transport
USDOT

Sea transport
IMDG

Hazard class:
Packing group:
ID number:
Hazard label:
Marine pollutant:

Proper shipping name:

Air transport
IATA/ICAO

Hazard class:
Packing group:
ID number:
Hazard label:

Proper shipping name:

Not classified as a dangerous good under transport regulations

9

11

UN 3082

9, EHSM

YES

ENVIRONMENTALLY HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE, LIQUID,
N.O.S. (contains IMAZAPYR 43%)

9

11

UN 3082

9, EHSM

ENVIRONMENTALLY HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE, LIQUID,
N.O.S. (contains IMAZAPYR 43%)

15. Regulatory Information

Federal Regulations

Registration status:
Chemical

Crop Protection

TSCA, US blocked / not listed

TSCA, US released/ listed



Safety Data Sheet
ARSENAL HERBICIDE APPL. CONC.

Revision date : 2014/12/23 Page: 11/11
Version: 3.0 (30497129/SDS CPA US/EN)
EPCRA 311/312 (Hazard categories): Acute; Chronic

NFPA Hazard codes:
Health: 1 Fire: 1 Reactivity: 0 Special:

Labeling requirements under FIFRA

This chemical is a pesticide product registered by the Environmental Protection Agency and is
subject to certain labeling requirements under federal pesticide law. These requirements differ from
the classification criteria and hazard information required for safety data sheets, and workplace
labels of non-pesticide chemicals. Following is the hazard information as required on the pesticide
label.

CAUTION:

KEEP OUT OF REACH OF CHILDREN.

Avoid contact with the skin, eyes and clothing.
Avoid inhalation of mists/vapours.

16. Other Information

SDS Prepared by:
BASF NA Product Regulations
SDS Prepared on: 2014/12/23

We support worldwide Responsible Care® initiatives. We value the health and safety of our
employees, customers, suppliers and neighbors, and the protection of the environment. Our
commitment to Responsible Care is integral to conducting our business and operating our facilities in
a safe and environmentally responsible fashion, supporting our customers and suppliers in ensuring
the safe and environmentally sound handling of our products, and minimizing the impact of our
operations on society and the environment during production, storage, transport, use and disposal of
our products.

IMPORTANT: WHILE THE DESCRIPTIONS, DESIGNS, DATA AND INFORMATION CONTAINED
HEREIN ARE PRESENTED IN GOOD FAITH AND BELIEVED TO BE ACCURATE, IT IS
PROVIDED FOR YOUR GUIDANCE ONLY. BECAUSE MANY FACTORS MAY AFFECT
PROCESSING OR APPLICATION/USE, WE RECOMMEND THAT YOU MAKE TESTS TO
DETERMINE THE SUITABILITY OF A PRODUCT FOR YOUR PARTICULAR PURPOSE PRIOR
TO USE. NO WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ARE
MADE REGARDING PRODUCTS DESCRIBED OR DESIGNS, DATA OR INFORMATION SET
FORTH, OR THAT THE PRODUCTS, DESIGNS, DATA OR INFORMATION MAY BE USED
WITHOUT INFRINGING THE INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF OTHERS. IN NO CASE
SHALL THE DESCRIPTIONS, INFORMATION, DATA OR DESIGNS PROVIDED BE CONSIDERED
A PART OF OUR TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE. FURTHER, YOU EXPRESSLY
UNDERSTAND AND AGREE THAT THE DESCRIPTIONS, DESIGNS, DATA, AND INFORMATION
FURNISHED BY OUR COMPANY HEREUNDER ARE GIVEN GRATIS AND WE ASSUME NO
OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY FOR THE DESCRIPTION, DESIGNS, DATA AND INFORMATION
GIVEN OR RESULTS OBTAINED, ALL SUCH BEING GIVEN AND ACCEPTED AT YOUR RISK.
END OF DATA SHEET



	ME-040001 Extension ME-040001 Arsenal Herbicide Applicators Concentrate MET memo 11.9.2021
	ME 040001 Arsenal AC Extension Lemin request 11.9.2021
	28 State House Station

	Arsenal Applicators Concentrate 24c request_cover letter_110821
	ME 040001 Arsenal AC pine, spruce 11-08-2021 SLN label to 2023
	241-299 Arsenal Arsenal Herbicide Applicators Concentrate 2017 label
	214-299 Arsenal Herbicide Applicators Concentrate SDS 12-23-2014
	1. Identification
	2. Hazards Identification
	3. Composition / Information on Ingredients
	4. First-Aid Measures
	5. Fire-Fighting Measures
	10. Stability and Reactivity
	11. Toxicological information
	12. Ecological Information
	13. Disposal considerations
	14. Transport Information



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize false
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile (None)
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages false
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Average
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages false
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Average
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages false
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Average
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages false
  /MonoImageFilter /None
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /AgencyFB-Bold
    /AgencyFB-Reg
    /Aharoni-Bold
    /Aldhabi
    /Algerian
    /Andalus
    /AngsanaNew
    /AngsanaNew-Bold
    /AngsanaNew-BoldItalic
    /AngsanaNew-Italic
    /AngsanaUPC
    /AngsanaUPC-Bold
    /AngsanaUPC-BoldItalic
    /AngsanaUPC-Italic
    /Aparajita
    /Aparajita-Bold
    /Aparajita-BoldItalic
    /Aparajita-Italic
    /ArabicTypesetting
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialmonospacedBoldforSAP
    /ArialmonospacedforSAP
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialRoundedMTBold
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /BaskOldFace
    /Batang
    /BatangChe
    /Bauhaus93
    /BellMT
    /BellMTBold
    /BellMTItalic
    /BerlinSansFB-Bold
    /BerlinSansFBDemi-Bold
    /BerlinSansFB-Reg
    /BernardMT-Condensed
    /BlackadderITC-Regular
    /BodoniMT
    /BodoniMTBlack
    /BodoniMTBlack-Italic
    /BodoniMT-Bold
    /BodoniMT-BoldItalic
    /BodoniMTCondensed
    /BodoniMTCondensed-Bold
    /BodoniMTCondensed-BoldItalic
    /BodoniMTCondensed-Italic
    /BodoniMT-Italic
    /BodoniMTPosterCompressed
    /BookAntiqua
    /BookAntiqua-Bold
    /BookAntiqua-BoldItalic
    /BookAntiqua-Italic
    /BookmanOldStyle
    /BookmanOldStyle-Bold
    /BookmanOldStyle-BoldItalic
    /BookmanOldStyle-Italic
    /BookshelfSymbolSeven
    /BradleyHandITC
    /BritannicBold
    /Broadway
    /BrowalliaNew
    /BrowalliaNew-Bold
    /BrowalliaNew-BoldItalic
    /BrowalliaNew-Italic
    /BrowalliaUPC
    /BrowalliaUPC-Bold
    /BrowalliaUPC-BoldItalic
    /BrowalliaUPC-Italic
    /BrushScriptMT
    /Calibri
    /Calibri-Bold
    /Calibri-BoldItalic
    /Calibri-Italic
    /Calibri-Light
    /Calibri-LightItalic
    /CalifornianFB-Bold
    /CalifornianFB-Italic
    /CalifornianFB-Reg
    /CalisMTBol
    /CalistoMT
    /CalistoMT-BoldItalic
    /CalistoMT-Italic
    /Cambria
    /Cambria-Bold
    /Cambria-BoldItalic
    /Cambria-Italic
    /CambriaMath
    /Candara
    /Candara-Bold
    /Candara-BoldItalic
    /Candara-Italic
    /Castellar
    /Centaur
    /Century
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CenturySchoolbook
    /CenturySchoolbook-Bold
    /CenturySchoolbook-BoldItalic
    /CenturySchoolbook-Italic
    /Chiller-Regular
    /ColonnaMT
    /ComicSansMS
    /ComicSansMS-Bold
    /ComicSansMS-BoldItalic
    /ComicSansMS-Italic
    /Consolas
    /Consolas-Bold
    /Consolas-BoldItalic
    /Consolas-Italic
    /Constantia
    /Constantia-Bold
    /Constantia-BoldItalic
    /Constantia-Italic
    /CooperBlack
    /CopperplateGothic-Bold
    /CopperplateGothic-Light
    /Corbel
    /Corbel-Bold
    /Corbel-BoldItalic
    /Corbel-Italic
    /CordiaNew
    /CordiaNew-Bold
    /CordiaNew-BoldItalic
    /CordiaNew-Italic
    /CordiaUPC
    /CordiaUPC-Bold
    /CordiaUPC-BoldItalic
    /CordiaUPC-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /CurlzMT
    /DaunPenh
    /David
    /David-Bold
    /DFKaiShu-SB-Estd-BF
    /DilleniaUPC
    /DilleniaUPCBold
    /DilleniaUPCBoldItalic
    /DilleniaUPCItalic
    /DokChampa
    /Dotum
    /DotumChe
    /Ebrima
    /Ebrima-Bold
    /EdwardianScriptITC
    /Elephant-Italic
    /Elephant-Regular
    /EngraversMT
    /ErasITC-Bold
    /ErasITC-Demi
    /ErasITC-Light
    /ErasITC-Medium
    /EstrangeloEdessa
    /EucrosiaUPC
    /EucrosiaUPCBold
    /EucrosiaUPCBoldItalic
    /EucrosiaUPCItalic
    /EuphemiaCAS
    /FangSong
    /FelixTitlingMT
    /FootlightMTLight
    /ForteMT
    /FranklinGothic-Book
    /FranklinGothic-BookItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Demi
    /FranklinGothic-DemiCond
    /FranklinGothic-DemiItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Heavy
    /FranklinGothic-HeavyItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Medium
    /FranklinGothic-MediumCond
    /FranklinGothic-MediumItalic
    /FrankRuehl
    /Free3of9
    /Free3of9Extended
    /FreesiaUPC
    /FreesiaUPCBold
    /FreesiaUPCBoldItalic
    /FreesiaUPCItalic
    /FreestyleScript-Regular
    /FrenchScriptMT
    /Gabriola
    /Gadugi
    /Gadugi-Bold
    /Garamond
    /Garamond-Bold
    /Garamond-Italic
    /Gautami
    /Gautami-Bold
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Gigi-Regular
    /GillSansMT
    /GillSansMT-Bold
    /GillSansMT-BoldItalic
    /GillSansMT-Condensed
    /GillSansMT-ExtraCondensedBold
    /GillSansMT-Italic
    /GillSans-UltraBold
    /GillSans-UltraBoldCondensed
    /Gisha
    /Gisha-Bold
    /GloucesterMT-ExtraCondensed
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Bold
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Italic
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Regular
    /GoudyStout
    /Gulim
    /GulimChe
    /Gungsuh
    /GungsuhChe
    /Haettenschweiler
    /HarlowSolid
    /Harrington
    /HelveticaLinotype-Bold
    /HelveticaLinotype-BoldItalic
    /HelveticaLinotype-Italic
    /HelveticaLinotype-Regular
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-Bd
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-BdCn
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-BdCnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-BdEx
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-BdExO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-BdIt
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-BdOu
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-Blk
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-BlkCn
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-BlkCnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-BlkEx
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-BlkExO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-BlkIt
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-Cn
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-CnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-Ex
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-ExO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-Hv
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-HvCn
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-HvCnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-HvEx
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-HvExO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-HvIt
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-It
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-Lt
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-LtCn
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-LtCnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-LtEx
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-LtExO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-LtIt
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-Md
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-MdCn
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-MdCnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-MdEx
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-MdExO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-MdIt
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-Roman
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-Th
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-ThCn
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-ThCnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-ThEx
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-ThExO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-ThIt
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-UltLt
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-UltLtCn
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-UltLtCnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-UltLtEx
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-UltLtExO
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-UltLtIt
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-XBlkCn
    /HelveticaNeueLTPro-XBlkCnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-Bd
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-BdCn
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-BdCnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-BdIt
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-Cn
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-CnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-It
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-Lt
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-LtCn
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-LtCnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-LtIt
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-Md
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-MdCn
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-MdCnO
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-MdIt
    /HelveticaNeueLTStd-Roman
    /HighTowerText-Italic
    /HighTowerText-Reg
    /Impact
    /ImprintMT-Shadow
    /InformalRoman-Regular
    /IrisUPC
    /IrisUPCBold
    /IrisUPCBoldItalic
    /IrisUPCItalic
    /IskoolaPota
    /IskoolaPota-Bold
    /JasmineUPC
    /JasmineUPCBold
    /JasmineUPCBoldItalic
    /JasmineUPCItalic
    /JavaneseText
    /Jokerman-Regular
    /JuiceITC-Regular
    /KaiTi
    /Kalinga
    /Kalinga-Bold
    /Kartika
    /Kartika-Bold
    /KhmerUI
    /KhmerUI-Bold
    /KodchiangUPC
    /KodchiangUPCBold
    /KodchiangUPCBoldItalic
    /KodchiangUPCItalic
    /Kokila
    /Kokila-Bold
    /Kokila-BoldItalic
    /Kokila-Italic
    /KristenITC-Regular
    /KunstlerScript
    /LaoUI
    /LaoUI-Bold
    /Latha
    /Latha-Bold
    /LatinWide
    /Leelawadee
    /LeelawadeeBold
    /Leelawadee-Bold
    /LeelawadeeUI
    /LeelawadeeUI-Bold
    /LeelawadeeUI-Semilight
    /LevenimMT
    /LevenimMT-Bold
    /LilyUPC
    /LilyUPCBold
    /LilyUPCBoldItalic
    /LilyUPCItalic
    /LucidaBright
    /LucidaBright-Demi
    /LucidaBright-DemiItalic
    /LucidaBright-Italic
    /LucidaCalligraphy-Italic
    /LucidaConsole
    /LucidaFax
    /LucidaFax-Demi
    /LucidaFax-DemiItalic
    /LucidaFax-Italic
    /LucidaHandwriting-Italic
    /LucidaSans
    /LucidaSans-Demi
    /LucidaSans-DemiItalic
    /LucidaSans-Italic
    /LucidaSans-Typewriter
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterBold
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterBoldOblique
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterOblique
    /LucidaSansUnicode
    /Magneto-Bold
    /MaiandraGD-Regular
    /MalgunGothic
    /MalgunGothicBold
    /MalgunGothicRegular
    /Mangal
    /Mangal-Bold
    /Marlett
    /MaturaMTScriptCapitals
    /Meiryo
    /Meiryo-Bold
    /Meiryo-BoldItalic
    /Meiryo-Italic
    /MeiryoUI
    /MeiryoUI-Bold
    /MeiryoUI-BoldItalic
    /MeiryoUI-Italic
    /MicrosoftHimalaya
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiBold
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiLight
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiRegular
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUIBold
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUILight
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUIRegular
    /MicrosoftNewTaiLue
    /MicrosoftNewTaiLue-Bold
    /MicrosoftPhagsPa
    /MicrosoftPhagsPa-Bold
    /MicrosoftSansSerif
    /MicrosoftTaiLe
    /MicrosoftTaiLe-Bold
    /MicrosoftUighur
    /MicrosoftUighur-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHei
    /MicrosoftYaHei-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHeiLight
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUI
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUI-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUILight
    /Microsoft-Yi-Baiti
    /MingLiU
    /MingLiU-ExtB
    /Ming-Lt-HKSCS-ExtB
    /Ming-Lt-HKSCS-UNI-H
    /Miriam
    /MiriamFixed
    /Mistral
    /Modern-Regular
    /MongolianBaiti
    /MonotypeCorsiva
    /MoolBoran
    /MS-Gothic
    /MS-Mincho
    /MSOutlook
    /MS-PGothic
    /MS-PMincho
    /MSReferenceSansSerif
    /MSReferenceSpecialty
    /MS-UIGothic
    /MT-Extra
    /MVBoli
    /MyanmarText
    /MyanmarText-Bold
    /Narkisim
    /New
    /NiagaraEngraved-Reg
    /NiagaraSolid-Reg
    /NirmalaUI
    /NirmalaUI-Bold
    /NirmalaUI-Semilight
    /NSimSun
    /Nyala-Regular
    /OCRAExtended
    /OldEnglishTextMT
    /Onyx
    /PalaceScriptMT
    /PalatinoLinotype-Bold
    /PalatinoLinotype-BoldItalic
    /PalatinoLinotype-Italic
    /PalatinoLinotype-Roman
    /Papyrus-Regular
    /Parchment-Regular
    /Perpetua
    /Perpetua-Bold
    /Perpetua-BoldItalic
    /Perpetua-Italic
    /PerpetuaTitlingMT-Bold
    /PerpetuaTitlingMT-Light
    /PlantagenetCherokee
    /Playbill
    /PMingLiU
    /PMingLiU-ExtB
    /PoorRichard-Regular
    /Pristina-Regular
    /Raavi
    /Raavi-Bold
    /RageItalic
    /Ravie
    /Rockwell
    /Rockwell-Bold
    /Rockwell-BoldItalic
    /Rockwell-Condensed
    /Rockwell-CondensedBold
    /Rockwell-ExtraBold
    /Rockwell-Italic
    /Rod
    /SakkalMajalla
    /SakkalMajalla-Bold
    /SAPDingsNormal
    /SAPGUI-Icons
    /SAPIconsNormal
    /ScriptMTBold
    /SegoeCondensed
    /SegoeCondensed-Bold
    /SegoePrint
    /SegoePrint-Bold
    /SegoeScript
    /SegoeScript-Bold
    /SegoeUI
    /SegoeUIBlack
    /SegoeUIBlack-Italic
    /SegoeUI-Bold
    /SegoeUI-BoldItalic
    /SegoeUIEmoji
    /SegoeUI-Italic
    /SegoeUI-Light
    /SegoeUI-LightItalic
    /SegoeUI-Semibold
    /SegoeUI-SemiboldItalic
    /SegoeUI-Semilight
    /SegoeUI-SemilightItalic
    /SegoeUISymbol
    /ShonarBangla
    /ShonarBangla-Bold
    /ShowcardGothic-Reg
    /Shruti
    /Shruti-Bold
    /SimHei
    /SimplifiedArabic
    /SimplifiedArabic-Bold
    /SimplifiedArabicFixed
    /SimSun
    /SimSun-ExtB
    /SitkaBanner
    /SitkaBanner-Bold
    /SitkaBanner-BoldItalic
    /SitkaBanner-Italic
    /SitkaDisplay
    /SitkaDisplay-Bold
    /SitkaDisplay-BoldItalic
    /SitkaDisplay-Italic
    /SitkaHeading
    /SitkaHeading-Bold
    /SitkaHeading-BoldItalic
    /SitkaHeading-Italic
    /SitkaSmall
    /SitkaSmall-Bold
    /SitkaSmall-BoldItalic
    /SitkaSmall-Italic
    /SitkaSubheading
    /SitkaSubheading-Bold
    /SitkaSubheading-BoldItalic
    /SitkaSubheading-Italic
    /SitkaText
    /SitkaText-Bold
    /SitkaText-BoldItalic
    /SitkaText-Italic
    /SnapITC-Regular
    /Stencil
    /Sylfaen
    /SymbolMT
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TempusSansITC
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /TraditionalArabic
    /TraditionalArabic-Bold
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Tunga
    /Tunga-Bold
    /TwCenMT-Bold
    /TwCenMT-BoldItalic
    /TwCenMT-Condensed
    /TwCenMT-CondensedBold
    /TwCenMT-CondensedExtraBold
    /TwCenMT-Italic
    /TwCenMT-Regular
    /UrduTypesetting
    /UrduTypesetting-Bold
    /Utsaah
    /Utsaah-Bold
    /Utsaah-BoldItalic
    /Utsaah-Italic
    /Vani
    /Vani-Bold
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
    /Vijaya
    /Vijaya-Bold
    /VinerHandITC
    /Vivaldii
    /VladimirScript
    /Vrinda
    /Vrinda-Bold
    /Webdings
    /Wingdings2
    /Wingdings3
    /Wingdings-Regular
    /YuGothic-Bold
    /YuGothic-Light
    /YuGothic-Regular
    /YuMincho-Demibold
    /YuMincho-Light
    /YuMincho-Regular
    /ZWAdobeF
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




